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1.  VISION
The vision of the ETDP SETA is to be a promoter and facilitator in the development and improve-
ment of the skills profile of the sector’s workforce in order to benefit employers, workers and 
employees in the sector.

2.  MISSION
The ETDP SETA holds as its mission, the promotion, facilitation and development of an educa-
tion, training and development sector in which:

• the skill levels of employees and workers are raised,
• there is a healthy balance between supply and demand in the labour market,
• there are diverse, flexible routes for initial and in-service education and training,
• a variety of career paths are available,
• the quality of education and training provision is improved,
• the levy grant scheme is efficiently administered,
• there is regular liaison with providers, other SETAs, the Department of Labour, the   
 NSA and SAQA and its structures,
• internal and external communication is effective in order to advance national human  
 resource and skills development,
• dialogue and interaction between public and private entities in the sector with regard  
 to skills transfer and training delivery is encouraged, and
• employers, workers and employees in the sector benefit from quality training, higher  
 productivity and harmonious mutual dependencies.

3.  CORE VALUES
We, as the ETDP SETA, commit ourselves to:

• Transparency and fair conduct,
• Honesty and integrity,
• Courteousness and caring,
• Honouring deadlines,
• Promoting equity amongst all our stakeholders,
• Cooperative governance, and  
• Striving for continuous improvement. 

4.  SERVICE DELIVERY CREDO
Our service delivery credo is to be at the cutting edge of skills development, within the ETD sector, 
contributing to the social and economic development of the people of South Africa.
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5.  CHAIRPERSON’S REMARKS

As Chairperson, I am quite mindful of the enormity within which our organisation operates to 
keep it at the top of its game.  Chiefly, we are committed to achieve the contractual obligations 
we have with the government, specifically the Department of Labour – to produce skills devel-
opment programmes and ensure that this occurs within a legal and ethical organisation.

Critical Successes
For the reporting year, there are several 
performance outcomes we are proud of, for 
example:

•   Punctual submission of the SSP to   
   the DoL and its approval;
•   Hosting a successful National Confer-  
   ence in September 2006; and
•   Commissioning and completion of   
     the scarce and critical skills research.

Internal Challenges
Current challenges facing the organisation 
relates to above-average staff turnover which is 
a crucial matter that senior management need 
to address.  In addition, there is a constraint in 
reaching out to constituent members in rural 
and remote areas of our country. This has an 
implication for governance accountability.

External Defining Moments
Completeness of our mandate as the SETA in general and ETDP SETA in particular has 
a central imperative to put our nation on par or beyond the best performing nations in the 
world.

To transcend the poverty line and achieve a developed status as a nation will require that all 
the forces in the country support the work that we do as the SETA.  Working together with 
FET colleges, universities, private providers and research organisations in the education and 
training fraternity will yield better results for our NSDS II objectives.
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I, therefore, challenge my fellow Board members, management, employees, associates and 
service providers to work with us to reduce the skills gap in our nation.  The words of Dr. John 
Langalibalele Dube echo the importance of the work we do in collaboration with other organi-
sations in our sectoral industry and arena.  He stated that there are three critical factors to 
the education of an African nation – “the need to educate the hand, the heart and the head to 
achieve true fulfillment and real impact of education.”  

I am trusting that the high level of financial investment that we approve as the Board for 
various projects will achieve what Dr. Dube had hoped to achieve in his small community in 
KwaZulu-Natal.

Appreciation
I wish to thank my fellow Board members for their reception to my chairpersonship for the year 
and the role they have played in keeping the Board functional.  Furthermore, I am grateful to 
the various committees such as Exco, Audit, Finance, Human Resources, ETDQA Perma-
nent Committee and Chambers for their contribution to the effective governance of the ETDP 
SETA.

Needless to mention, the defining assets for every organisation are the merit and dedication 
of its employees.  One is aware of the dedication and zeal that our employees have in going 
about doing their duties.  On behalf of the Board, I would like to congratulate those employees 
who distinguish themselves and carry the burden of achieving meritorious results for their indi-
vidual and departmental targets.

I also wish to thank all our service providers and stakeholders for the contribution they have 
made in skills development.

 

_________________________________
Mr. Vernon Nzama
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
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6.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Background
The ETDP SETA has in 2006/07 financial year 
performed better compared to 2005/06 in terms 
of achieving its  key targets.  Evidence of this 
is represented below and strategic areas have 
been singled out to showcase the successes 
and under-achievements.

Highlights for the year 
A number of successes were recorded by the 
organisation in line with our core business of 
providing access to and regulating the provi-
sion of skills development in our sector.  These 
include the following:

- Learning Programmes
For the 2006/07 period, there was a huge demand for learning programmes to such an extent 
that the following targets were reached:

15 548 learners were trained of which:

• 13 735 were Black employed;
• 7 834 were female employed;
• 2 031 were unemployed.

There has been also a high demand for the internship programmes which implied that the 
sector consists of a high number of graduates who are unemployed especially the youth. The 
internship programmes saw unemployed people placed in different workplaces which afforded 
them an opportunity to put in practice their theoretical knowledge as well as affording them 
with an opportunity to gain work experience. The stipend provided by the SETA enabled them 
with the required financial support to travel to the identified workplaces as well as an income 
though insufficient to meet their personal and family needs.  Students that required workplace 
experience to complete their academic studies were also afforded the opportunity and expo-
sure to the work environment. The SETA afforded this opportunity to 153 learners in different 
work environments.
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Figure 1: Below shows a comparison between targets set and targets achieved for  
       2006/07 financial year:

The SETA has achieved the targets it set for the year, which is a good indication that if current 
performance is enhanced it would definitely exceed the overall targets by March 2010.

Performance Environment
Our organisation has developed a five-year strategic plan based on the NSDS II objectives 
and the skills needs of the constituent members. Annual business plans have been devel-
oped to serve as a guideline for performance development.  This is further guided by the SLA 
(Service Level Agreement) between the SETA and DoL.

As a result, employees have entered into performance agreements that are linked to the annual 
business plan and NSDS goals.  This is a way of reinforcing performance across the various 
departments within the organisation.  

Provincialisation
The organisation has expanded its geographical reach to service constituent members as 
mandated by the Board. Three offices were opened in the following provinces: Limpopo, Kwa-
Zulu Natal and the Eastern Cape.  The opening of these offices has greatly increased the 
accessibility of the SETA and created a credible platform to reach our constituencies  who 
predominantly live in remote and rural areas.  
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National Conference
In September 2006 we hosted a very successful and well attended National Conference that 
took place in Midrand at Gallagher Estate.  In line with the NSDS objectives, the national 
conference declaration focused on the following:

• Critical and scarce skills
• Teacher development
• ABET and ECD
• Recognition of prior learning
• Quality assurance
• ETDP SETA-Government relationship
• Research
• Rural development issues
• Career guidance
• Monitoring, and Evaluation of projects and  Impact assessment on the beneficiaries of   
 skills development

Research
The organisation was able to commission and complete the scarce and critical skills research 
to gauge the level of skills required over time.  At national level, the top five priority scarce 
occupational skills were identifies as:

- finance managers, 
- mathematics school teachers, 
- early childhood (or pre-primary school) teachers, 
- natural sciences school teachers, and 
- technology school teachers. 

- The top five occupations that need “top-up” or critical skills are: 
- office administrators, 
- general secretaries, 
- early childhood (pre-primary school) teachers, 
- chief executives/managing directors/school principals, and heads of departments. 
The scarce and critical skills research report has generated a high level of interest in the   
work that we do and serves as a catalyst for the fulfillment of the NSDS II overall targets.  
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Financial Management
The ETDP SETA has sound financial controls with an unqualified report from the Auditor 
General’s Office in the previous years as well as in this year of reporting. This is an indication 
of good administration,  of good governance and management practices. 

It is significant to mention areas of unspent money as this is sometimes viewed as sitting on 
mountains of cash. The ETD programmes vary in the duration whilst some are often shorter 
and others can also be as long as three to four years. For example, the Bachelor of Science 
degree (B Sc) and the Bachelor of Education (B Ed) take three and four years respectively. 
These allocated funds become committed untill spent because we make subsequent payments 
after we have reveived satisfactory annual results.

Our financial commitment levels are therefore longer, to ensure that we fulfill our commitment 
to those learners. 

- Challenges
In spite of the high achievement in many areas, there were some levels of under achievement 
in the following areas:

• BEE Cooperatives – this is a challenge since, in general, there are no cooperatives in  
 the education and training sector. The SETA is working on a strategy to develop  
 educational services cooperatives which will be relevant to the needs of the sector.
• We fell short of the 4% required target of recruiting, placing and training and development 

of people living with disabilities. Our approach to their development was found to be insuf-
ficient to meet their needs. In an attempt to address the short fall, the ETDP SETA has put 
in place a strategy to train and develop the skills of people living with disabilities in line with 
their recommendations which were made after a consultative meeting between the SETA and 
the organisations representing people living with disabilities.

• Low completion rate per annum of learnerships.  This is due to the duration of the   
 programmes within the ETD sector and the drop out rates have also been observed.

Human Resources
There has been an above average turnover of staff.  The organisation has held exit interviews 
and many of these reports have indicated that our staff is leaving for better prospects outside 
the organisation. To improve the situation, we have developed a staff retention strategy to 
retain good staff and avoid any chances of brain drain within the organisation.  

Management  Information System (MIS)
The organisation has experienced some challenges on the implementing of a sound MIS 
system. This has compromised the endorsement of learners and other operations. In October 



Annual  Repor t  2006/2007

12

2006 a new MIS was secured from a new service provider and this has brought about marked 
improvements in the learner endorsement of competences acquired.

Conclusion
I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to the SETA Board, governance  structures, our 
service providers, our constituencies and our clients at large for the commitment they have 
demonstrated  through the support that they have provided in ensuring that the organisation 
fulfills its mandate. Many have sacrificed their time and provided their services to the SETA at 
no cost to the SETA. This commitment and dedication cannot pass by unnoticed and is there-
fore much appreciated.

I also wish to thank our levy payers and the Departments of Education for the levies and 
financial contribution made to the SETA. Without this financial injection the ETDP SETA will 
not have succeeded in developing the skills of the people of South Africa for job creation and 
poverty alleviation. You are the soul of the organisation.

To the management and staff, there has been a lot of hard work, family sacrifices and commit-
ment as we engaged in our operations catch up programme which culminated in the successes 
we all share today. I thank you for stretching your limits. Keep up the good work so that we can 
move from good to great.

I thank you all

_________________________
Mrs. Nombulelo Nxesi
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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7.  ETDP SETA PERFORMANCE REPORT AGAINST THE 
     NSDS II OBJECTIVES

After the launch of the Five-Year National Skills Development Strategy 2005 – 2010 (NSDS 
II) in 2005 by the Minister of Labour, the Honourable Mr. Membathisi Mdladlana, the strategy 
is now two years in the implementation phase with three years remaining to achieve the set 
objectives. 

ETDP SETA once more made a commitment to achieve NSDS II objectives in 2006/07 by 
entering into a Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the Department of Labour (DoL).  

The ETDP SETA achieved most of the targets set in 2006/07 (see Tables 1 to 5 below for the 
extent to which the ETDP SETA achieved the set targets for each of the NSDS II objectives for 
2006/07 financial year).

 
Table 1: Achievements on NSDS II Objective 1 and Targets for 2006/07

NSDS II Objective 1: Prioritizing and Communicating Critical Skills for Sustainable Growth, 
Development and Equity

NSDS Success Indicator SETA Target 2006/07 Achievement 2006/07 Reasons for 
Deviations

1.1 Skills development 
supports national 
and sectoral growth, 
development and equity 
priorities

Annual final SSP 
submitted on the 30th of 
November 2006 as per 
guidelines issued by the 
DoL and approved

Annual final SSP submitted on 
the 30th of November 2006 as 
per guidelines issued by the 
DoL and approved

No deviations

1.2 Information on scarce 
and critical skills is widely 
available to learners

Annual training of 601 
persons who carry out 
skills development 
facilitation in the use of 
the scarce and critical 
skills guide to widely 
avail information to 
learners 

Annual training of 773 (or 
127%) persons who carry out 
skills development facilitation 
in the use of the scarce and 
critical skills guide to widely 
avail information to learners

The demand 
was high and 
the actual 
training cost per 
person lower 
than budgeted
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Table 2: Achievements on NSDS II Objective 2 and Targets for 2006/07

NSDS II Objective 2: Promoting and Accelerating Quality Training for all in the Workplace

NSDS Success Indicator SETA Target 
2006/07 Achievement 2006/07 Reasons for 

Deviations

2.1(a) By March 2010 at 
least 80% of large 
firms’ employment 
equity targets are 
supported by skills 
development 

By March 2007, 
54 large firms’ 
employment equity 
targets are supported 
by skills development 
through WSP/ATR 
grants 

By March 2007, 58 
(or 107%) large firms’ 
employment equity 
targets were supported 
by skills development  
through WSP/ATR 
grants

More WSPs/
ATRs were 
received than 
anticipated

2.1(b) By March 2010 
at least 60% of 
medium firms’ 
employment 
equity targets are 
supported by skills 
development 

By March 2007, 
84 medium firms’ 
employment equity 
targets are supported 
by skills development 
through WSP/ATR 
grants 

By March 2007, 191 (or 
227%) medium firms’ 
employment equity 
targets were supported 
by skills development  
through WSP/ATR 
grants 

More WSPs/
ATRs were 
received than 
anticipated

2.2 By March 2010 
skills development 
in at least 40% of 
small levy paying 
firms supported 

By March 2007 skills 
development in 845 
of small levy paying 
firms to be supported 

By March 2007, skills 
development in 804 (or 
95%) of small levying 
paying firms were 
supported 

Baseline was 
underestimated

2.5 Annually 
increasing number 
of small BEE firms 
and cooperatives 
supported by skills 
development

10 small BEE firms 
and 5 cooperatives 
supported by skills 
development

22 (or 220%) small BEE 
firms and 0 cooperatives 
supported by skills 
development 

There are no 
educational 
services 
cooperatives 
at the moment 
registered in 
accordance 
to the 
Cooperatives 
Act of 2005

2.7 By March 2010 
at least 700 000 
workers have 
achieved at least 
ABET Level 4

By March 2007, 4500 
workers have entered 
ABET Level 1 to Level 
4

By March 2007, 5001 
or 111% workers had 
entered ABET Level 1 to 
Level 4

The demand 
was high and 
actual cost of 
the programmes 
were lower than 
budgeted for
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2.8. By March 2010 
at least 125 000 
workers assisted to 
enter and at least 
50% successfully 
complete 
programmes, 
including 
learnerships and 
apprenticeships, 
leading to basic 
entry, intermediate 
and high level 
scarce skills 

By March 2007, 4380 
workers assisted 
to enter and 2190 
successfully complete 
programmes, 
including 
learnerships and 
apprenticeships, 
leading to basic entry, 
intermediate and high 
level scarce skills

By March 2007, 7182 
(or 164%) workers 
assisted to enter and  
57 (or 3%) successfully 
completed programmes 
including learnerships 
and apprenticeships, 
leading to basic entry, 
intermediate and high 
level scarce skills

The actual 
cost of the 
programmes 
were lower than 
budgeted for 
and this allowed 
increased 
entered 
numbers.
Due to the 
duration of 
programmes 
completion will 
be reported 
in the new 
financial year

Table 3: Achievements on NSDS II Objective 3 and Targets for 2006/07

NSDS II Objective 3: Promoting Employability and Sustainable Livelihoods through 
Skills Development

NSDS Success Indicator SETA Target 2006/07 Achievement 
2006/07

Reasons for 
Deviation

3.2 By March 2010, at 
least 2000 non-levy 
paying enterprises, 
NGOs, CBOs, and 
community-based co-
operatives supported 
by skills development 

By March 2007, 700 non-levy 
paying enterprises, NGOs, 
CBOs, and community-
based co-operatives to 
be supported by skills 
development

By March 2007, 854 
(or 122%)  non-levy 
paying enterprises, 
NGOs, CBOs, and 
community-based 
co-operatives were 
supported by skills 
development

The actual 
cost of the 
programmes 
were lower 
than budgeted 
for and this 
allowed 
increased 
participation 
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Table 4: Achievements on NSDS II Objective 4 and Targets for 2006/07

NSDS II Objective 4: Assisting Designated Groups, including New Entrants to Participate in Accredited 
Work, Integrated Learning and Work-Based Programmes to Acquire Critical Skills to Enter the Labour 

Market and Self-Employment

NSDS Success Indicator SETA Target 2006/07 Achievement 
2006/07 Reasons for Deviation

4.1 By March 2010 at least 
125 000 unemployed 
people assisted to 
enter and at least 50% 
successfully complete 
programmes, 
including learnerships 
and apprenticeships, 
leading to basic entry, 
intermediate and high 
level scarce skills

By March 2007, 1780 
unemployed people 
assisted to enter 
and 890 successfully 
complete programmes 
including learnerships 
and apprenticeships, 
leading to basic entry, 
intermediate and high 
level scarce skills

By March 2007, 3071 
(or 173%) unemployed 
people assisted 
to enter and 3 (or 
0.34%) successfully 
completed 
programmes  
including learnerships 
and apprenticeships, 
leading to basic entry, 
intermediate and high 
level scarce skills

The actual cost of the 
programmes were lower 
than budgeted for and this 
allowed increased numbers

4.2 100% of learners 
in critical skills 
programmes 
covered by sector 
agreements from FET 
and HET institutions 
assisted to gain 
work experience 
locally or abroad, of 
whom at least 70% 
find placement in 
employment or self-
employed

100 learners in critical 
skills programmes 
covered by sector 
agreements from FET 
and HET institutions to 
be assisted to gain work 
experience locally or 
abroad, of whom 70 find 
placement in employment 
or self-employed

153 (or 153%) 
learners in critical 
skills programmes 
covered by sector 
agreements from FET 
and HET institutions 
assisted to gain 
work experience 
locally, and 0 find 
no placement in 
employment or self-
employed

Lack of placement abroad 
saved actual costs to 
increase numbers, and all 
students are still studying 
hence no placement in 
employment 

4.3 By March 2010, at 
least 10 000 young 
people trained 
and mentored to 
form sustainable 
new ventures and 
at least 70% of 
new ventures in 
operation 12 months 
after completion of 
programme

By March 2007, 300 young 
people enter new venture 
programmes

By March 2007, 376 
(or 125%) young 
people entered new 
venture programmes

The actual cost of the 
programmes were lower 
than budgeted for and 
this allowed increased in 
numbers
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Table 5: Achievements on NSDS II Objective 5 and Targets for 2006/07

NSDS II Objective 5: Improving the Quality and Relevance of Provision

NSDS Success Indicator SETA Target 
2006/07

Achievement 
2006/07

Reasons for 
Deviation

5.1 By March 2010 each SETA 
recognizes and supports at least 
five Sectoral or Occupational 
Excellence (ISOE) within public 
institutions and through Public 
Private Partnerships (PPPs) where 
appropriate, spread as widely as 
possible geographically for the 
development of people to attain 
identified critical occupational 
skills, whose excellence is 
measured in the number of 
learners successfully placed in the 
sector and employer satisfaction 
ratings of their training 

By March 2007, 
ETDP SETA 
recognizes and 
supports 2 ISOEs 

By Marh 2007, 
ETDPSETA 
recognized and 
supported 0  
ISOEs 

Board 
approved 2 
ISOEs to be 
set in North 
West and 
Mpumalanga. 
Processes 
are underway 
to finalise 
agreements

5.2 By March 2010, each province has 
at least two provider institutions 
accredited to manage the delivery 
of the new venture creation 
qualification

By March 2007, 
each province 
has 2 provider 
institutions 
accredited to 
manage the 
delivery of the 
new venture 
creation 
qualification

By March 2007, 
KZN has 3, LIM 
has 1, FS has 1, 
WC has 1 and GP 
has 7 provider 
institutions 
accredited to 
manage the 
delivery of the 
new venture 
creation 
qualification

Remaining 5 
providers who 
applied did 
not qualify
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8.  LEARNERSHIPS AND SKILLS PROGRAMMES

During the year under review, a substantial number of programmes were implemented by the 
ETDP SETA to benefit both the employed and the unemployed people in the sector.

8.1 Learning Programmes
During the 2006/07 financial year, ETDP SETA offered the following learning programmes: 

o Learnerships
o Skills programmes
o Bursaries
o Internships 
o Workplace Agreements
o New Venture Creation

8.1.1 Learnerships
Both ETD and Non-ETD learnerships were offered and a total of 2 061 learners were regis-
tered in learnerships; of which 526 were employed (18.1) and 1 535 were unemployed (18.2). 
Refer below to some of the learnership programmes implemented by the SETA. 
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8.1.1.1 ETD Learnerships
Early Childhood Development (ECD)
This learnership aims to equip people within the communities with the 
necessary skills to run ECD sites effectively and efficiently. There were 302 
learners who entered the programme, of which 55 were employed and 247 
were unemployed. 

Adult Basic Education and Training (ABET)
The aim of the ABET learnership is to increase the number of 
facilitators in ABET centres to enable the achievement of 
700 000 workers reaching ABET level 4 by 2010. This is 
intended to reduce the high illiteracy level that exists throughout 
the sectors. 232 learners entered the learnership, of which 20 
were employed and 212 were unemployed.

Occupationally Directed Education and Training Development Practices (ODETD) 
The ODETD learnership aims at addressing shortages of skills within the education and training 
organisations in the private sector. It provides skills in facilitation, mentoring and assessment, 
and development and design of programmes. 166 learners entered the learnership, of which 
70 are employed and 96 are unemployed. 

Development Practice (DEV PRAC)
The DEV PRAC learnership aims at developing the community workers who work within 
community-based organisations, municipalities, and within communities to address civic 
matters. There were 320 learners who entered the learnership, 257 unemployed and 63 
employed learners. 

Post Graduate Certificate in Education (PGCE)
The PGCE learnership serves as a capping for candidates who have completed an appro-
priate 360 or 480 credit Bachelors’ degree other than the Bachelor of Education (B.Ed). It is 
for learners who want to be qualified as professional educators in schooling. The learnership 
provides access to further study in education, training and development at NQF levels 6 and 7. 
It is ideally suited to assist the ETD sector in the supply of educators in learning areas where 
there is a scarcity of educators, especially in mathematics, science, technology, accounting 
and languages.  There are currently 359 learners in the PGCE learnership, 47 employed 
learners and 312 unemployed learners.  

National Professional Diploma in Education (NPDE)
The ETDP SETA’s introduction of this qualification was to assist under-qualified school educa-
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tors (i.e., those below REQV 13) with the opportunity of becoming fully qualified professionals. 
The qualification has a strong classroom focus and equips educators with the foundational, 
practical and reflexive competencies required for further study at NQF level 6.  There are 
currently 110 employed learners who have entered the programme.

8.1.1.2 Non-ETD Learnerships
Administration and Finance
This learnership is for individuals who wish to be involved in the administration function in 
any organisation or business, or field as well as non commercial organisations such as clubs 
and charitable organisations. It is ideally suited for the NGOs, CBOs as well as the education 
sector for learners who want to pursue a career in administration. Learners working towards 
this qualification will find that the acquisition of competence in the unit standards which make 
up the qualification will add value to their work performance. This qualification is intended to 
enhance the provision of service within the field of administration within the sector.  There were 
341 that entered the programme of which 238 were unemployed and 103 were employed.

Information Administration 
The Information Administration learnership provides learners with knowledge, specific skills 
and applied competencies in computing, data analysis and mathematical modeling more 
particularly in computer science, information systems, operations, research and statistics as a 
base for continued intellectual growth. The SETA has trained 7 learners of which 6 completed 
the learnership. 

Other Non ETD learnerships
In the ETDP SETA’s bid to contribute to ASGISA and JIPSA, it has introduced Electrical, 
Carpentry, Painting and Plumbing learnerships. There are currently 50 learners on these learn-
erships, 13 employed and 37 unemployed.

ABET level 1 - 4 
This is an NSDS II initiative and is supported by the SETA. This qualification assists learners in 
achieving an ABET level 4 qualification (NQF level 1). The SETA set a target of 4 500 learners 
while 5 001 learners actually entered this particular programme, of which 1 895 learners were 
female, and 4778 learners were black.

8.1.2 Skills Programmes
Skills programmes implemented by the SETA include both primary focus and non-primary focus 
programmes. For 2006/07, there was a total of 7 858 learners trained in skills programmes, of 
which there were 6 433 employed and 1 425 unemployed.

8.1.2.1 Primary Focus Programmes
These include mentor, assessor, moderator, skills development facilitator, facilitation of 
learning, material and curriculum development training. 
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8.1.2.2 Non-Primary Focus Programmes
The ETDP SETA offered a range of non-primary focus skills programmes to its constituent 
members which included: leadership and management, managing HIV and AIDS, project 
management, information communication and technology, marketing and customer care, 
change and diversity management and strategic planning. 

8.1.3 Bursaries
The aim of the ETDP SETA bursary programme is to give opportunities for employees in the 
ETD sector and the unemployed who wish to enter into the ETD sector in gaining qualifica-
tions in scarce and critical skills both at intermediate and high levels identified through the 
Sector Skills Plan (SSP). The ETDP SETA introduced the Bursary Programme to resolve this 
shortage and awarded 50 bursaries of which 23 were employed and 27 unemployed. These 
included a bursary for the Bachelor of Education degree (B.Ed) which gives learners an oppor-
tunity to become fully qualified as professional educators in schooling. 

8.1.4 Internships 
The ETDP SETA Internship programme is a graduate work experience programme targeting 
unemployed graduates. The internship gives an opportunity to practice the work skills that 
they have studied and will practice in future. The SETA programme is directed at young people 
who have completed their studies and are unemployed, especially in scarce and critical skills. 
An internship can also benefit the employer who has an opportunity to get to know the intern 
and to establish whether the intern is employable in the business thus increasing prospects of 
employability. It attempts to resolve the general shortage of qualified and skilled people in the 
workforce by encouraging graduates to equip themselves with the necessary practical experi-
ence. There were 49 unemployed learners who benefited from the internship programme.

8.1.5 Workplace Experience
ETDP SETA workplace agreements assist learners in scarce and critical skills programmes 
covered by sector agreements from FET and HET institutions to gain work experience. This 
assists learners in finding employment or self-employment. The ETDP SETA provides work 
experience grants that make it easier for learners to gain work experience in the ETD sector 
workplaces. Although the SETA had a target of 100 workplace agreements, there were 153 
learners who benefited from the programme.

8.1.6 New Venture Creation
The aim of the SETA’s new venture creation programme is to train and mentor young people 
to form sustainable new ventures and to assist in ensuring that some of these ventures are 
operating 12 months after completion of the training. There were 376 learners who benefited 
from the ETDP SETA New Venture Creation programme.
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8.1.7 Overall Achievements
The ETDP SETA rolled out the learning programmes on an immense scale and achieved a 
high rate of success in its overall targets. It has a total of 15 548 learners who have entered 
learning programmes for 2006/07 financial year, of which 2061 were learnerships, 50 were 
Bursaries, 49 were Internships and 7 858 were Skills Programmes, 376 in the New Venture 
Creation programme, 153 assisted in Workplace Agreements, and 5001 learners in ABET 
levels 1 to 4 learning programmes. Of the beneficiaries who entered learning programmes, 
7834 were Female and 13 735 were Black learners. 

8.1.8 Challenges
In the midst of the above achievements, there were challenges encountered especially during 
the implementation of the learnerships and skills programmes. These included the readiness 
of the employer to implement learning programmes, availability of training providers at the sites 
of need, learners’ drop-out rate, and different management and interpretation of contracts by 
training providers. 

8.2 Quality Assurance
The ETDP SETA has been re-accredited by SAQA to continue ensuring that there is quality 
provision of education and training within the ETD sector through accredited providers of 
services and programmes offered by the ETDP SETA. The ETDP SETA’s role as a quality 
assurance body is to accredit providers, evaluate programmes, verify assessment, modera-
tion and certification. 

The ETDP SETA’s role in the promotion of quality through monitoring, evaluation and building 
the capacity of providers is critical if quality provision is to be achieved and maintained.  

8.2.1 Accreditation of Constituent Providers
During the 2006/07 financial year a total of 77 providers received accreditation from the ETDP 
SETA. 37 providers got full accreditation. This is 48% of the total number of providers accred-
ited. The remaining 52% (40 providers) received provisional accreditation. 34 providers were 
accredited in GP, 16 in KZN, 3 in WC, 6 in EC, 3 in MP, 3 in FS and 12 in LP (See Figure 2 
below in terms of percentages).

Figure 2: Accredited Providers by Province
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8.2.2 Re-Accreditation of Constituent Providers
A total of 78 providers whose accreditation had expired were re-accredited. 

8.2.3 Evaluation of Learning Programmes 
The ETDP SETA had a target of 200 learning programmes to be evaluated for 2006/07. A total 
of 321 programmes were approved. The target was exceeded by 121 or 61%, this includes 
programmes that came through MoUs. The majority of qualifications and unit standards eval-
uated were on assessors, moderators, facilitators and OD ETD qualifications. 20% of 321 
received and evaluated programmes were on ABET, Development and ECD Practitioners. No 
programme evaluation for scarce qualifications such as Braille and Orientation and Mobility 
was received. The SETA has put together a strategy to help and develop providers to offer 
these scarce and critical qualifications in the 2007/08 financial year. 

8.2.4 Provider Development
A total of 69 capacity building workshops were conducted in all the provinces. The purpose 
of the workshop was to capacitate providers to understand the accreditation processes and 
criteria, design and develop learning programmes, implementation of recognition of prior 
learning (RPL) for ECD providers, marketing a business, assessor registration, tendering 
processes, as well as uploading of learners. Providers were taken through the new Manage-
ment Information System (MIS). 1 073 providers were reached through these workshops (see 
Table 7 below for the number of providers and locations per province). 

Table 7: Provider Capacity Building Workshops

Type of 
Workshop EC GP FS KZN LIM MP NC NW WC TOT

Provider 
Indaba 1 30 1 123 1 40 1 75 1 45 1 24 1 7 0 0 1 63

MIS 2 23 2 104 2 36 2 68 2 38 2 17 2 4 1 18 2 58

RPL: ECD 
Providers 1 17 1 22 1 11 1 18 1 12 1 12 1 7 1 9 1 24

Providers 
seeking  
accreditation

1 24 0 0 1 18 1 36 1 26 3 32 0 0 0 0 0 0

Program 
design and 
development

0 0 1 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 5 94 5 281 5 105 5 197 5 121 7 85 4 18 2 27 4 145 69 1073
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8.2.5 Joint Implementation Plan with SAQA
To ensure relevancy and currency of skills and competencies acquired by learners, the quali-
fications and unit standards needs to be reviewed continuously and re-registered on the NQF. 
The following qualifications (see Table 8 below) were registered by SAQA through a joint 
venture with the ETDP SETA referred to as the Joint Implementation Plan. 

Table 8: New Qualifications Allocated to ETDP SETA in 2006/07

ID Number Qualification Title Level Credits

50520 Further Education and Training Certificate: 
Library Services

4 130

57428 Further Education and Training Certificate : 
Youth Development

4 155

57427 National Certificate: Youth Development 
Diploma - Development Practice

5 240

50332 Further Education and Training Certificate: 
Occupationally Directed Education Training 
and Development Practices

4 120 

50334 National Certificate: Occupationally Directed 
Education Training and Development 
Practices

5 120

In an attempt to increase the opportunity of participation by ETDP SETA constituent providers, 
a ‘Trade Union Practices NQF level 4’ qualification for labour movements was developed and 
went for public comment in the year under review. The qualification will be registered by the 
end of May 2008.  

Currently, the ETDP SETA offers the following learnerships (see Table 9 below)   
 
Table 9: Learnerships Registered by the ETDP SETA

                                         Learnership NQF Level

National Certificate in ABET Practice (ETD: Adult Learning, ABET Specialization)  5 

General Education and Training Certificate in Development Practice 1

Further Education and Training Certificate in Development Practice 4

Higher Education and Training Certificate in Development Practice 5

Occupationally Directed Education, Training and Development Practice 4

Occupationally Directed Education, Training and Development Practice 5
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Early Childhood Development 4

Early Childhood Development 5

Post-Graduate Certificate in Education (PGCE) 6

Administration and Finance Learnership 3

New Venture Creation 3

8.2.6 Memorandum of Understanding
ETDP SETA, in promoting closer working relationships with other SETA ETQAs, band ETQAs 
and professional bodies has entered and signed agreements in the current financial year with 
the South African Board of Personnel Practitioners (SABPP) and AGRISETA which brings the 
total number of signed MoUs to 19. These are SETA ETQA (Agricultural, Energy, Financial 
and Accounting Services, Food and Beverage Manufacturing Industry, Health and Welfare, 
Local Government, Information Systems Electronic and Telecommunications Technologies, 
Manufacturing Engineering and Related Services, Mining Qualification Authority, Public Service, 
Services, Security and Safety, Transport SETA, Tourism Hospitality and Sports, Insurance, 
and Wholesale and Retail SETAs); and Band ETQA (Umalusi, Higher Education and Quality 
Council) working agreements.

8.2.7 Quality Assurance of Learners’ Achievement
8.2.7.1 Verification of Learner Achievements
A number of verification visits were conducted amongst SETA providers in various provinces. 
ETDP SETA has adopted a developmental process for providers who have just been accredited 
and those who came from other SETA ETQAs, band ETQAs and Professional bodies. Each 
provider is supported before the actual verification of learner achievement takes place. A 
number of external verifiers have been contracted to help with this function. 5 providers were 
verified in the EC, 4 in FS, 71 in GP, 24 in KZN, 4 in LP, 7 in MP, 2 in NC, 7 in NW and 17 in 
WC (see Figure 3 below). 

Figure 3: Verification of Learner Achievement per province
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8.2.7.2 Assessor Registration
ETDP SETA is the only SETA that has been mandated by SAQA to register all assessors 
found competent in generic assessor unit standards. In 2006/07 1 062 assessors and 462 
moderators were registered. The ETDP SETA target for the year under review was to register 
500 assessors. It has exceeded this target by registering 562 more providers, and this has 
contributed to ETD providers having an excess of qualified assessors and moderators that 
they can utilize in assessing their learning and teaching.

8.3 Mandatory Grants Support for Constituencies
The following constituencies benefited from funding during the 2006/07 financial year.

8.3.1 Higher Education Institutions (HEIs)
This constituency includes all universities and technikons. The ETDP SETA received 32 WSPs 
and ATRs plans for 2006/07.  Of the 32, 29 have been disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and 
the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  An amount of R27, 388,612.72 has 
been disbursed.

8.3.2 Public Further Education and Training Institutions (FETs) as Employers
The FET constituency includes technical colleges and newly-created FET Colleges.  The ETDP 
SETA received 24 WSPs and ATRs plans for 2006/07.  Of the 24, 22 have been disbursed, 2 
tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  An amount 
of R383,739.53 has been disbursed.

8.3.3 Early Childhood Development (ECD)
The ETDP SETA received 37 WSPs and ATRs plans for 2006/07 for ECD constituencies. Of 
the 37, 15 have been disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before 
the end of May 2007.  An amount of R65,757.57 has been disbursed. 

8.3.4 Trade Unions as Employers
The ETDP SETA received 23 WSPs and ATRs plans for 2006/07.  Of the 23, 22 have been 
disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  
An amount of R916, 305.10 has been disbursed.

8.3.5 School Governing Bodies (SGBs) as Employers
This constituency represents staff employed by the School Governing Bodies in Public Schools. 
The ETDP SETA received 308 WSPs and ATRs for 2006/07.  The payments for all 308 has 
been disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 
2007.  An amount of R2,597,610.84 has been disbursed.
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8.3.6 Private Providers
This constituency consists of providers of ETD in the small, medium and large business 
categories. The ETDP SETA received 159 WSPs and ATRs for 2006/07.  Of the 159, 123 have 
been disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 
2007.  An amount of R2,497,059.91 has been disbursed.

8.3.7 Independent Schools
The ETDP SETA received 214 WSPs and ATRs for 2006/07.  Of the 214, 201 have been 
disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  
An amount of R4,130,693.83 has been disbursed.

8.3.8 Non Government Organisations
The NGOs constituency is another of the levy-exempt members. The ETDP SETA received 
61 WSPs and ATRS for 2006/07.  Of the 61, 44 have been disbursed, 2 tranches paid to date 
and the 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  An amount of R287, 971.94 has 
been disbursed.

8.3.9 Political Parties, Libraries and Archives and Research
There has been limited participation by these constituencies due to technicalities relating 
to the classification of the libraries, archives and research organizations. The ETDP SETA 
received 16 WSPs and ATRs for 2006/07.  The two tranches for all 16 have been disbursed. 
The 3rd tranche will be paid before the end of May 2007.  An amount of R1, 009,445.97 has 
been disbursed for research. 

In addition, ETDP SETA received 337 levy exempt WSPs and ATRs from other constituencies.  
These constituencies were assisted with HIV/AIDS toolkits.
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9.  SUPPORT SERVICES

9.1 Human Resources
9.1.1 Staff Development
The ETDP SETA strives to “practice what we preach” with respect to skills development in 
the SETA and it is pleasing to report that the SETA staff at an individual level pursued their 
own learning in line with internal Training and Development initiatives identified through the 
Performance Management and Development System (see Table 11 below, which represents 
individuals at the same level who have attended specific learning programmes).
 
Table 11: ETDP SETA Staff Development Courses by Race and Gender

Course
Female Male

A C I W A C I W TOT

Managers Turning Point Workshop 1 1

HOD Management for New Managers 1

Managing Corporate 
Communications Programmes

1

Skills Development Facilitation 1

Facilitation & Assessor Course 1 4

Coordinators Payroll Administration Academy 
Course

1 1

Research  & 
Communications 
Officer

Innovative Research in Social 
Development
Skills Development Facilitation

1

Writing Creatively for Publication 1 2

Grant Portfolio 
Officers

Facilitation & Assessor Course 1

Skills Development Facilitation 1 2
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Personal 
Assistants

Report Writing 1

Practical Project Management for 
PA’s & Administrators

3 1 5

Skills Advisors Skills Development Facilitation 1

Employment Equity 
Transformation Effectively as 
part of BEE Strategy Workshop

1 1 3

Evaluators Innovative Research in Social 
Development

1 1 2

Administrators Assessment Moderation & 
Evaluation

1 1

Practical Project Management for 
PA’s & Administrators

2 4

Receptionist Voice over the Phone Workshop 1 1

Office Assistant Telephone & Reception Skills 1 1

Total Trained 
Employees

18 1  2 3 2 26

Table 12: ETDP SETA Governance Development Courses by Race and Gender

Occupation Course
Female Male

 A C I W A C I W TOT

Board Members & 
Broad Management

Financial Accounting 
Principles for Public 
Entities

12 1 1 2 6 1 2 25

In addition, various internal programmes were conducted in-house for all staff; for example, 
Performance Management and Job Description writing. The Staff Bursary Programme was also 
well supported with 18 staff being awarded bursaries to further develop their competencies 
through higher qualifications at the beginning of 2007. 
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An extensive review of the Human Resources policies was conducted during the year, 
culminating in the approval by the Board of most of the revisions by the end of March 2007. 
In addition, the Performance Management and Development System (PMDS) was revamped 
and was applied as a complete process during the year.

A substantial Job Evaluation and Benchmarking exercise was conducted – the broad 
conclusion was that as an organisation, the ETDP SETA remunerates its employees within fair 
and reasonable limits. The exercise led management to focus on the organisational structure 
and proposals have been made to the Board that will enhance the visibility of the SETA in the 
provinces and ensure that more skills and competencies in the areas of skills development are 
made available to the provinces.

9.1.2 Staff Profile
The ETDP SETA staff profile reflects the racial diversity of the country. Efforts are being made 
to improve the number of disabled staff who are employed by the SETA. As at the 31st of 
March 2007, the appointed staff complement stood at 82 fulltime staff (see Tables 13 and 14 
below). 

 
Table 13: ETDP SETA Staff and Equity Profile as at 31 March 2007

FEMALE MALE
T

Grade Designation A C I W T A C I W T

P3 CE0 1 1 0 1

P4 COO & CFO 0 2 2 2

P5 Managers 2 2 1 1 3

P6 HOD’s 5 1 6 5 1 1 7 13

P6 Specialists 0 2 2 2

P6 Senior Accountants 0 1 1 2 2

P8 Secretariat & PA’s 3 1 4 0 4

P8 Skills Advisors 3 3 4 1 5 8

P8 Project Leaders 3 3 3 1 1 5 8
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P8 Coordinators & 
Officers

6 1 1 8 3 0 11

P9 Evaluators 3 1 4 4 4 8

P10 Administrators 12 1 13 0 13

P13 Receptionist 3 1 4 0 4

P15 Office Assistants 1 1 1 1 2

P15 Driver 0 1 1 1

 TOTAL STAFF 42 1 2 4 49 26 2 3 2 33 82

Key: A – African, C – Coloured, I – Indian, W – White, T - Total

Table 14: ETDP SETA Equity profile as at 31 March 2007

Group Male Female Total Staff
per Group

Disabled 
Male

Disabled
Female

African 26 42 68 0 0
Indian 3 2 5 0 0

Coloured 2 1 3 0 0
White 2 4 6 0 0

Total Staff by 
gender

33 49 82 0 0
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Figure 4: ETDP SETA Staff By Race and Gender 
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9.1.3 Disciplinary Measures
No disciplinary actions were instituted against any members of staff over the past year. In 
addition, no grievances were lodged by the staff against the SETA.

9.2 Management Information System (MIS)
The ETDP SETA is currently implementing the new Information Management System called 
DataNet. The system is still in the roll-out phase. The system is web-based but it also allows 
for the offline usage. Online usage allows the stakeholders (service providers) to log on 
interactively to capture all the information directly onto the SETA’s database. Validation checks 
are implemented as data is being captured. For access, training providers submitted access 
request forms. User ID and passwords were created and sent to providers.

Offline usage allows training providers who have their own systems to upload data in batches. 
This is achieved through the usage of the validation software (VeriDataNet) which has been 
prescribed by SAQA for data validation. This software was distributed to the training providers 
to enable them to validate their data before it is submitted to the ETDP SETA. Data is moved 
from the training providers’ side directly into the ETDP SETA database through the SSH 
(Secure Shell). Secure Shell is a program to log into another computer over a network, to 
execute commands in a remote machine, and to move files from one machine to another. It 
provides strong authentication and secure communications over insecure channels.

The system as it is currently caters for the following: Data Upload facility, Capturing of Learner 
data and achievements, Printing of Statement of Results and other Reports both from the 
ETDP SETA and the provider side, View Qualification and Unit Standard details, Search and 
View accredited Assessor details by various criteria such as Province, Unit standards etc., 
Search and View accredited Training Provider basic details, and Search and View employer 
basic details 

9.3 Supply Chain Management 
The ETDP SETA has successfully applied the Supply Chain Management policies and 
procedures from National Treasury. The Supply Chain Management policy was developed 
and approved by the ETDP SETA Board in May 2005. All procurement for the SETA is guided 
by the approved policy. Monthly reports are sent to the Department of Labour and to National 
Treasury, in terms of all concluded procurement processes. The Bid Evaluation and the Bid 
Adjudication Committees guide and advise the CEO on all procurement related issues.

The 2006/07 financial projects were successfully procured and concluded via the open tender 
route. The total contracts entered into amounted to R120 million. The SCM Unit ensured that 
the entire process and contracting was concluded without any problems in terms of compliance 
issues. The ETDP SETA has also helped other SETAs and government departments with 
implementation of the PPPFA.
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9.4 Research and Skills Planning
The following main projects constituted the agenda of the research and skills planning unit in the 
financial year: identification, monitoring and dissemination of information on scarce and critical 
skills; availing research reports through partnerships and other means; conducting summative 
and formative evaluation of SETA projects; and updating the Sector Skills Plan (SSP). 

9.4.1 Identifying Scarce and Critical Skills
Scarce and critical skills in the ETD sector at national, provincial and constituency levels have 
been identified and a guide developed to disseminate this information to learners through 
SDFs. 773 SDFs have been trained to use the scarce and critical skills guide. 

9.4.2 Customer Survey
A Levy chamber survey was conducted to assess the level of satisfaction of SETA services.  

9.4.3 Updating the SSP 
Both the Budget and Levy chambers 2006/07 WSPs and 2005/06 ATRs were captured, 
analysed and reports produced. Information from these WSPs and ATRs was used to update 
the SSP. In addition, information from scarce and critical skills was used to update Chapter 
Four of the SSP. It was submitted on time to the DoL. 

9.5 Marketing and Communication
The ETDP SETA website remains the flagship mechanism for ongoing communication, with 
average monthly statistics in terms of total number of visits and total number of visitors having 
reached 290 729 per month. 

Of particular interest during the period, were the successful launches of ETDP SETA Provincial 
offices in Kwa-Zulu Natal, Eastern Cape and Polokwane which provided the SETA with the 
opportunities to offer key stakeholders and gatekeepers the look-see opportunities by way 

of site visits, as well as publicly showcasing 
delivery of our skills development initiatives at 
provincial levels and the progress made in the 
sector. 
In its quest to engage stakeholders, ETDP 
SETA also held its second national conference 
at Gallagher Estates in Gauteng which was 
successfully attended by 750 delegates which 
ensured better measurability and liability of 
such communication platform.
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9.6 Financial Performance Review

9.6.1 Overview
The 2006/07 financial year was characterised by challenges, success stories and continuous 
improvement processes.  Due to the rollover of projects from 2005/06, the 2006/07 financial 
year dealt with the phasing out of these programmes whilst also starting new programmes for 
2006/07 year.

By nature of the number of programmes we implemented tight, flexible but equally responsive 
project management systems.  As a result we have been able to compile a list of running 
programmes and therefore avert any risks of possible over or under commitment of funds.

By nature of the type of skills development programmes that are in the sector, the SETA will 
always have committed but not yet spend funds at every final year end.  This is because the 
programmes often extend beyond one year duration as they are influenced by the academic 
calendar that does not match with the financial year.

The balance of funds of R277.722 million is represented by committed funds of R119 million in 
relation to signed and running programmes and R159 million that has been put aside to fund 
new programmes in the financial year 2007/08. 

There has been a commendable improvement in the payment of mandatory grants. This 
process was made possible because of the automated receiving and paying system.  Despite 
the 70% payment rate, as the organisation ETDP SETA still strives towards increasing this to 
a higher level.  The coming financial year will see another improvement in the management 
information system and continuous improvements in mandatory payment processes.

9.6.2 Revenue
National and nine Provincial Departments of Education paid their ten percent of their one 
percent levy contribution.  As regards the SARS levies, the challenges facing the SETA with 
respect to obtaining all levies due via SARS still remains. However, efforts have been made 
to contact member organisations who had been reflected as debtors on DoL’s debtors file. 
Attempts were also made to establish the exact number of organisations within the ETDP 
sector.  
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10.  AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

10.1 Introduction
The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the above mentioned financial year 
ended 31st of March 2007.

10.2 Audit Committee Members and Attendance
Audit Committee consists of the members listed below.  It is required to meet four times per 
annum as per its approved terms of reference.  During the current year four meetings were held.

Table 16: Members for the Year

Member No of meetings attended

Mr Vusi Mokwena (Chairperson) (1/02/2007-1/04/2008) 1

Mr Nick Nicholls (Chairperson) (3/01/2006 – 31/01/2007) 3

Mr Jan Hurter (Employer Representative) 4

Mr John Maluleke (Employer Representative) 3

Mr Bashier Adam (External Expert – appointed 3/01/2006) 4

Ms Trudy Guma (Labour Representative) 2

10.3 Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 77 
of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999) and Treasury Regulation 3.1.

The Audit committee also reports that it has adopted, with approval of the Board, appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance 
with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

10.4 Effectiveness of Internal Control
The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets 
are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with 
the requirements of the PFMA and the King II Report on corporate governance internal audit 
provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are 
appropriate and effective.  This is achieved by means of a risk management process as well 
as the institution of corrective actions and suggestions for improvement to internal controls 
and processes.

Certain senior appointments were made during the previous reporting year which has 
substantially improved the control environment. In our opinion, based on the report back 
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from the internal and external auditors and information reported during our Audit Committee 
meetings, the internal control environment contained weaknesses which have subsequently 
been  strengthened.  We further believe that valuable findings were made and reported by  
the office of the Auditor-General.  These have been followed-up and corrected.

10.5 The Quality of In Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Reports   
        Submitted in Terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act
In our opinion the monthly and quarterly reports produced and delivered to stakeholders have 
been adequate to provide the necessary financial information. Performance information has 
not been provided as part of this process as we have suggested.

10.6   Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the  ETDP SETA and 
reviewed the Auditor General’s management report and report on the Audit Opinion. We are 
satisfied that the Auditor-General has made valuable findings  which were communicated to 
management through the management report and that  such findings were followed up and 
implemented by management.

10.7 Forensic and Audit Investigation Report
The Board has taken steps to implement the findings made by the service providers engaged to 
undertake the audit and forensic investigation. We are satisfied that the steps taken would be 
adequate to address the findings made and that this matter would reach its final conclusion. 

10.8 Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the  
 annual report with the Auditor General, the Accounting Officer and the Executive   
 Committee of the ETDP SETA.
• Reviewed the Auditor General’s management report and management’s responses thereto.
• Reviewed changes in accouting policies and practices.
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Audit Committee accepts the Auditor General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial 
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited financial statements be accepted and read 
together with the report of the Auditor - General
 

Vusi Mokwena CA(SA)
Chairman: Audit Committee
Date: 14 August 2007
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11. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE  
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION  
 OF THE EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES  
 SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR  
 ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1.  I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Education, Training and Devel-
opment Practices Sector Education and Training Authority (ETDP) which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2007, statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on 
pages 46 to 81.

Responsibility of the Accounting Authority for the Financial Statements

2.     The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the 
National Treasury of South Africa, as described in note 1 to the financial statements and 
in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) 
(PFMA). This responsibility includes: 

• designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation   
 and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,   
 whether due to fraud or error 
• selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies 
• making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

3.  As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 read 
with sections 4 and 20 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and section 
14(6)(a) of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998), my responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
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4.  I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and 
General Notice 647 of 2007, issued in Government Gazette No. 29919 of 25 May 2007. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

5.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal controls. 

6. An audit also includes evaluating the:

• appropriateness of accounting policies used
• reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management
• overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a  
 basis for my audit opinion.

Basis of accounting

8. The entity’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the basis of accounting 
 determined by the National Treasury, as described in note 1 to the financial statements.

Unqualified opinion 

9.  In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and 
Training Authority as at 31 March 2007 and its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended, in accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the National 
Treasury of South Africa, as described in note 1 to the financial statements, and in the 
manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999).
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Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying my audit opinion on the financial statements, I draw your attention to the 
following matters: 

Highlight of a matter affecting the financial statements included in the notes 

 Skills development levies

10.  As indicated in  accounting policy note 3 to the financial statements, the SETA does not 
have a legislative mandate to obtain and maintain source documentation to support 
revenue.   As a result the SETA experienced difficulties in ensuring that revenue is recorded 
on a complete and accurate basis.  The National Treasury had amended the accounting 
policy on revenue recognition to take into account legislative constraints and the new 
accounting policy will be effective from 1 April 2007.  The financial statements for the year 
under review have been prepared on a basis consistent with the previous year.

OTHER MATTERS

I draw attention to the following matters that are ancillary to my responsibilities in the audit of 
financial statements:
 
Non-compliance with applicable legislation 

11.  Mandatory grants were not paid quarterly in terms of Skills Development Regulation 6   
 due to a lack of monitoring of controls.

Special investigation 

12.  An investigation commissioned by the Board was conducted on the 2004/05 and 2005/06 
discretionary grant disbursements during the financial year-end 31 March 2007. Significant 
findings from the investigation included a R4.600 million overspending in grant payments 
and control weakness relating to administration and payment of these grants. A follow up 
investigation is being conducted based on the findings of the previous investigation. 

13. Material corrections made to the Annual Financial Statements submitted for auditing were:

• Accruals to the amount of R8.699 million were not provided for and were corrected
• Double accruals of R944 700 were reversed
• SDL income recorded in the Annual Financial Statements was corrected by R904 700 
• SARS receivables of R4.806 million and payables of R3.322 million incorrectly recorded  
 were corrected 
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Matters of governance

 Dependency on government levies 

14.  Significant reliance was placed on voluntary contributed government levies of R51 million 
which in the absence thereof, will compromise the normal day to day running expenses 
and would cause the SETA to exceed the legal limit on administrative expenditure. The 
government departments have however committed themselves to contribute in the future 
via service level agreements with ETDP SETA.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Reporting on performance information

I have audited the performance information as set out on pages 13 to 17.

Responsibility of the accounting authority 

15. The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as required by section 55(2)(a) of  
 the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and audited financial statements fairly present  
 the performance against predetermined objectives of the public entity.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

16.  I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 
(Act No. 25 of 2004) read with General Notice 646 of 2007, issued in Government Gazette 
No. 29919 of 25 May 2007. 

17.  In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an audit 
nature to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the performance information 
and related systems, processes and procedures.  The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement.

18. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
 for the audit conclusions reported below. 

Audit findings

19. Objectives disclosed as per the strategic plan were not specific enough to address the   
     overall targets as set out by the National Skills Development Strategy.
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20.  Performance indicators were inconsistent between the strategic plan and the annual report                
 and not presented meaningfully.

APPRECIATION

21. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Education, Training and Development Practices 
     Sector Education and Training Authority during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

P Bhana for Auditor-General

Pretoria

22 August  2007
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 

The Accounting Authority of the ETDP SETA, through its support pillars, is pleased to present 
this annual report in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999) 
and in compliance with Treasury Regulations of 15 March 2005.

1. General review of the state of affairs at the SETA
The ETDP SETA has completed another year characterised by high performance in certain 
areas and under achievement in a few.  The organisation is committed to achieve its targets 
as set out in the National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS).  In order to accomplish this, 
the Board has amongst others, embarked on the following key activities:

• Ensure the SETA five year strategic plan meets the five year NSDS targets;
• Re-aligned the organisational structure to ensure that maximum performance is   
 achieved by integrating some of the functions and service delivery modes in a manner  
 that will respond positively to the achievement of the NSDS targets.
• Established provincial offices in the Eastern Cape, Kwa-Zulu Natal, and Limpopo to  
 ensure that rural and remote areas could benefit from the skills development programmes  
 at the SETA.
• Improvements in levy contribution by the Provincial and the National Departments of  
 Education increased the revenue base.

The audited and annual financial statements reflect a decrease in the net surplus compared to 
the prior year.  This was due to increased service delivery by the SETA in paying out grants.  
The grant expenditure for the year increased significantly due to more employers claiming 
mandatory grants and the implementation of more discretionary projects in the year.  Levy 
income for the year increased by 8% and the SETA made a net surplus of R37,960 million.

A number of successes were recorded by the organisation in line with our core business of 
providing access to and regulating the provision of skills development to our sector.  This in-
cluded a huge demand for these programmes to the extent that significant amounts of learners 
were trained and the targets were exceeded.  Challenges, however, include the low comple-
tion rate per annum of learnerships.

2. Governance
In carrying out its mandate as per Section 51 of the Public Finance Management Act, the SETA 
Board strengthened its effectiveness through its sub committees.  These are Finance Com-
mittee, Audit Committee, Human Resources Committee, Levy and Budget Chambers.  These 
committees honoured their scheduled meetings and provided their activity reports of each 
meeting to the Board.   Board members and members of other committees are reflected in item 
12 pages 79 to 82 in this annual report.
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To ensure consistency and reliability of activities at the ETDP SETA, the Board monitored 
reporting and the activities of the ETDP SETA for purposes of compliance with all applicable 
laws, its constitution and approved policies.  With specific focus on PFMA and Treasury Regu-
lation, Skills Development Act, Skills Development Levies Act and Grant funding regulations.

The elements which are basic governance, risk management and compliance effectiveness 
have either been addressed by ETDP SETA or are being addressed as follows:

2.1 Internal Audit
The ETDP SETA Internal Audit function is outsourced to an independent audit body which op-
erates on an approved Internal audit plan.  The internal audit reports to the Audit committee.

2.2  Audit committee
The Audit committee comprises of six independent members.  The Audit committee is advisory 
in nature and reports to the Authority.  The committee’s charter is aligned to the duties as pre-
scribed by the PFMA and Treasury Regulations.  The committee has the authority to seek any 
information it requires from any office or employee of the Authority, has unrestricted access to 
all personnel, books of account, records and to any other sources of relevant information that 
may be required from the Authority for the purpose of its duties and responsibilities.  It is also 
authorised to seek such independent professional advice as it considers necessary.

2.3 Financial management
ETDP SETA financial management remains sound and is compliant with PFMA and National 
Treasury regulations.  Comprehensive financial reporting is presented by the Chief Financial 
Officer to the organisation’s Finance Functional Standing Committee quarterly meetings.  This 
report is also submitted to the Executive Committee as well as the Audit Committee.  An all-
inclusive budgeting process formed part of the business plan process and is used as a bench-
mark for levy income and grant administration and capital expenditure.  A quarterly report of 
these is presented to the ETDP SETA Governing Board and the Department of Labour.

2.4 Policies
Most existing policies and procedures are reviewed annually.  A new IT policy has been devel-
oped during the financial year to ensure better safety with regard to IT issues.  The financial 
policies and procedures are aligned to Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice.

2.5 Supply Chain management unit
The ETDP SETA is compliant with the supply chain management unit as prescribed by Na-
tional Treasury which consists of a cost accountant and procurement administrator.  The cost 
accountant also acts as the compliance officer.  A reviewed procurement policy as well as a 
supply chain management framework has been adopted by the ETDP SETA.
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2.6 Systems
ETDP SETA’s information technology systems are fully operational, cost effective and well 
supported.  The organisation is committed to continuous and systematic development of its 
database, Datanet.  The organisation’s IT network is fully functional and stable and reaches 
its regional offices effectively and efficiently.  A disaster recovery plan is in place and a new IT 
policy was also developed.

3. Annual Performance
The performance shown under the performance report bears testimony to hard work, focus 
and dedication of ETDP SETA.  The organisation paid about 70% of mandatory grants pay-
able and implemented learning programmes that will benefit no less than 15 000 beneficiaries.  
The Board has also approved a list of learning programmes for implementation in the 2007/08 
financial year.

In September 2006 the ETDP SETA hosted a successful national skills development confer-
ence.  The resolutions that came out of this conference have influenced the type of learning 
programmes undertaken in 2007/08.

4. Audit Investigation
The ETDP SETA Board appointed a professional firm in 2006 to conduct an audit investigation 
on the projects grants that were disbursed as part of R74 million discretionary allocations in 
the 2002/03 and 2003/04 financial years.

The purpose of the Audit investigation was to:

- establish if all approved funds to an amount of R74 million went to the approved programmes;
- establish whether funds had an impact on the Board constituencies;
- establish if the approved policies, process and procedures had been followed in the  
 disbursement of the R74 million discretionary grants;
- identify fraud risk and indicators that might have been possible.

To this end an audit firm has subsequently provided the Board with a final report which the 
Board has officially accepted.

The findings of the final report indicated that:

- Governance problems existed at the ETDP SETA;
- Internal controls were weak;
- Certain ETDP SETA staff did not perform their duties;
- Suspicion of fraud by certain providers exists.
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Though the investigation covered 2002/03 and 2003/04 financial years, the Board noted its 
findings on internal control weaknesses, the inadequacy of minute taking and recording of 
resolutions of the Board, inadequate budgetary control, reporting and monitoring. The effec-
tiveness of the internal controls has since improved, good corporate governance is in place 
and disciplinary action has been instituted in certain cases for areas that warrant forensic 
investigation.  The Board has pronounced itself to pursue such investigation on all possible 
fraudulent transactions that are identified in the report.
   

12.5 Compensation of Senior Executives
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Remuneration of Governance Structures
Except for reimbursement of travelling expenses, the members do not receive payment for 
attending meetings.

6. Wasteful, Fruitless and Irregular Expenditure
For the period under review neither management, the internal auditors nor external auditors 
have brought to the attention of the Board any activities that may be seen as wasteful, fruitless 
or irregular.

7. SETA Levy
The ETDP SETA appears to be reliant on DoE monies for funding the administration expenses 
and this is caused by the fact that these expenses exceed the 10 percent portion of the levies 
from DoL (SARS).  The National and Provincial departments in their meeting of 12 March 2007 
reiterated their commitment towards future contributions to the SETA, until 2010, significant 
reasons exist to believe that these funds will also in future enable the SETA to not exceed the 
10% threshold.

8. Human Resources Management
The challenges from a staffing point of view are being addressed through, amongst others, 
additional resources being allocated to the provinces in particular as well as a concerted effort 
on internal training and development initiatives being introduced in the new financial year.

9. Performance Information
In fulfilling the NSDS II targets the ETDP SETA has performed above average.  A significantly 
high number of 7182 (as opposed to a target of 4380) workers entered learning programmes, 
773 (rather than 601 targeted) SDFs and sector specialists were trained to use the ETD scarce 
and critical skills guide, 58 (versus a target of 54), large firms and 191 (versus 84 targeted) 
medium firms were supported in skills development and 5001 (versus 4500 targeted), learners 
entered ABET.  We did however fall short of the 4 percent required target of recruiting, training 
and placing people with disabilities. The SETA managed to score well in many of its set targets, 
which is a good indication that if our current performance can be enhanced, we would definitely 
be able to meet or exceed the overall target by 2010.

10. Events after reporting date
The ETDP SETA is not aware of any events after reporting date which will affect the financial 
state of affairs of the organisation for the 2006/07 financial year.



51

11. New activities
ETDP SETA has aligned their operations with the national strategies of JIPSA and ASGISA 
(Accelerated Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa).  This will result in re-prioritisation of 
projects and funds allocated to different projects.

12. Conclusion
The Authority is of the opinion that controls maintained within the organisation are appropriate 
and effective.  The Board also deems the ETDP SETA to be a going concern.  Finally, the 
Board has taken full responsibility of its functions and fiduciary duties as per section 51, 53, 
54 and 55 of the PFMA.

13. Approval of the Annual Financial Statements
The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2007, as appended, have 
been approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999 on 16 May 2007, and are signed on its behalf by:

       

_____________________     _____________________                         
N Nxesi                V Nzama
CEO        BOARD CHAIRPERSON

16/05/2007       16/05/2007
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EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

2006/07 2005/06
Note R'000 R'000

REVENUE
Non - Exchange Skills Development Levy: income 3 193,463              178,490              
Non - Exchange Skills Development Levy: penalties and interest 1,243                  1,049                  
National Skills Fund income 17 1,271                  14,791                
Government Grants Funding income 18 1,941                  1,232                  
Investment income from exchange transactions 4 20,735                14,927                
Other income from exchange transactions 5 152                     151                     

Total revenue 218 805              210 640              

EXPENSES
Employer grant and project expenses 6 (127,579)             (32,970)               
Administration expenses 7 (49,876)               (44,503)               
Finance charges 8 (178)                    (236)                    
National Skills Fund expenses 17 (1,271)                 (14,791)               
Government Grants Funding expenses 18 (1,941)                 (1,232)                 

Total expenses (180 845)             (93 732)               

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 2 37 960                116 908              

Annual Financial Statements  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 MARCH 2007

2006/07 2005/06
Note R'000 R'000

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,679                  4,421                  
Intangible assets 10 1,514                  229                     

5 193                  4 650                  

Current assets
Accounts receivable from non-exchange transactions 11 32,469                28,961                
Accounts receivable from exchange transactions 12 1,194                  1,097                  
VAT receivable 13 -                          1,211                  
Cash and cash equivalents 14 292,658              294,970              

326 321              326 239              

TOTAL ASSETS 331 514              330 889              

LESS : LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease obligations 16.1 410                     53                       
410                     53                       

Current liabilities

Accounts payable from non-exchange transactions 15 35,696                63,695                
Accounts payable from exchange transactions 16 9,481                  6,706                  
National Skills Fund received in advance 17 686                     10,950                
Government Grants and donor funding received in advance 18 128                     2,069                  
Provisions 19 2,093                  2,356                  

48 084                85 776                

TOTAL LIABILITIES 48 494                85 829                

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 283 020              245 060              

RESERVES
Administration reserve 5,298                  4,650                  
Discretionary reserve 277,722              240,410              

283,020              245,060              

Annual Financial Statements  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Notes
Administration 

reserve
Employer grant 

reserve
Discretionary 

reserve
Unappropriated 

surplus Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Balance at 31 March 2005 -                          26 118                102 034              -                          128 152              
- - - 116 908              116 908              

Allocation of unappropriated surplus 22 270                45 761                48 877                (116 908)             -                          
(17 620)               (71 879)               89 499                -                          -                          

Balance at 31 March 2006 4 650                  -                          240 410              -                          245 060              
- - - 37 960                37 960                

Allocation of unappropriated surplus 2 22 167                27 953                (12 160)               (37 960)               -                          
(21 519)               (27 953)               49 472                -                          

Balance at 31 March 2007 5 298                  -                          277 722              - 283 020              

Net surplus per Statement of Financial Performance 

Net surplus per Statement of Financial Performance 

Excess reserves transferred to Discretionary reserve

Excess reserves transferred to Discretionary reserve

Annual Financial Statements  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

2006/07 2005/06
Note R'000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating activities
Cash receipts from stakeholders 181 802              187 386              

Levies received - administration 69 435                64 549                
                       - employer grants 82 810                87 825                
                       - discretionary grants 27 365                31 329                
Interest and penalties received  981                     860                    
Cash received in advance -                          2 500                  
VAT received 1 211                   323                    

Cash paid to stakeholders, suppliers and employees (203 128)             (179 861)             
Grants and project payments (140 552)             (119 087)             
Special projects -                          (17 246)               

   Compensation of employees (25 110)               (21 590)               
Payments to suppliers and other (37 466)               (19 795)               
VAT paid -                          (2 143)                 

Cash generated from operations 20 (21 326)               7 525                  
Investment income 20 778                15 212                

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities ( 548)                   22 737                

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(1 886)                 ( 691)                   

 122                     18                      

Net cash outflow from investing activities (1 764)                 ( 673)                   

(2 312)                 22 064                
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14 294 970              272 906              
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14 292 658              294 970              

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Annual Financial Statements  

CASHFLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES       
        
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements 
are set out below and are, in all material respects, consistent with those of the previous year, 
except as otherwise indicated.        
             
1.1 Basis of preparation  
       
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.    
   
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African State-
ments of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) including any interpretations of 
such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the effective Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
replacing the equivalent GAAP Statements as follows:        
 

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP
GRAP 1 : Presentation of financial 
                Statements

AC101 : Presentation of financial 
              Statements

GRAP 2 : Cash Flow Statements AC118 : Cash Flow Statements

GRAP 3 : Accounting policies, changes in     
                accounting  estimates and errors

AC103 : Accounting policies, changes in 
              accounting  estimates and errors

Currently the recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP State-
ments do not differ or result in material differences in items presented and disclosed in the 
financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1,2 & 3 has resulted in the following 
changes in the presentation of the financial statements :      
    
1. Terminology differences:       
        
 Standard of GRAP     Replaced Statement of GAAP  
 Statement of financial performance  Income statement    
 Statement of financial position   Balance Sheet    
 Statement of changes in net assets  Statement of changes in equity  
 Net assets      Equity    
 Surplus/deficit     Profit/loss    
 Accumulated surplus/deficit    Retained earnings   
 Contributions from owners    Share capital    
 Distributions to owners    Dividends 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2. The cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method.   
     
3. Specific information has been presented separately on the statement of financial position   
    such as:  
      
    (a) receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers;  
    (b) taxes and transfers payable;       
    (c) trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions.     
         
4. The amount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances are required.     
  
Paragraph 11 - 15 of GRAP 1 has not been implemented due to the fact that the budget reporting 
standard has not been developed by the local standard setter and the international standard is 
not effective for this financial year.  Although the inclusion of budget information would enhance 
the usefulness of the financial statements, non-disclosure will not affect the objective of the finan-
cial statements. 

1.2 Currency   
    
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand since that is the currency in 
which all entity transactions are denominated.       
            
1.3 Revenue recognition  
        
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enter-
prise and these benefits can be measured reliably.         
      
1.3.1 Levy income    
        
In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), 
registered member companies of the SETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total pay-
roll cost to the South African Revenue Services (SARS).      

80% of skills development levies are paid over to the SETA (net of the 20% contribution to the 
National Skills Fund).        
        
Levy income is recognised on the accrual basis.  

A net receivable/payable is recognised for levies accrued as well as estimated SARS adjustments.  
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SETA revenue is set aside in terms of the Skills Developments Levies Act, 1998 (Act no. 97 of 
1998) as amended and the SETA Grant Regulations for the purposes of: 

2006/07 2005/06

Admin cost 10% 10%

Mandatory workplace skills grant 50% 50%

Discretionary grants, projects 20% 20%

SETA portion 80% 80%

 
An estimate due to retrospective adjustments by SARS and outstanding levies due at year-end 
is based on budgeted receipts and actual SARS adjustments. Changes to prior year estimates 
are accounted for in revenue in the current period. 
     
The SETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from 
SARS.  Where SARS retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result 
in grants that have been paid to certain employers that are in excess of the amount the SETA 
is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relating to the overpayment to the em-
ployer in earlier periods is raised at the amount of such grant overpayment, net of bad debts 
and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Revenue is adjusted for interSETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjust-
ments are separately disclosed as InterSETA transfers. The amount of the interSETA adjust-
ment is calculated according to the Standard Operating Procedure issued by the Department 
of Labour in 2005. 

When a new employer is transferred to the SETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA 
are recognised as revenue and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original 
identity.

Employers who have annual payrolls below R500 000 have been exempted from the further 
payment of skills development levies. In cases where payments have been made by these 
employers in error an accrual has been made for the refund of the levies.

1.3.2 Future change to Revenue Recognition 
     
The accounting policy for the recognition and measurement of skills development levy income 
has been amended on the basis of a revised interpretation of the Skills Development Act, Act 
no 97 of 1998 and the Skills Development Levies Act, Act no 9 of 2001. 
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The new accounting policy allows SETAs to recognise revenue on the receipt of the funds from 
the Department of Labour in the bank account of the SETA in line with international practice for 
revenue recognition on an accrual basis. 

The revision was completed and issued by National Treasury on 27 July 2007 and is effective 
from 1 April 2007. 

The accounting policy for 2006/07 is consistent with previous year policies and disclosures. 

1.3.3 Interest and Penalties 
      
Interest and penalties on the skills development levy are recognised on the accrual basis.  
     
1.3.4 Funds allocated by the National Skills Fund for Special Projects  

Funds transferred by the National Skills Fund (NSF) are accounted for in the financial state-
ments of the SETA as a liability until the related eligible special project expenses are incurred, 
when the liability is extinguished and revenue recognised. 

Property, plant and equipment acquired for NSF Special Projects are capitalised in the finan-
cial statements of the SETA, as the SETA controls such assets for the duration of the project. 
Such assets could, however, only be disposed of in terms of agreement and specific written 
instructions by the NSF. 

1.3.5  Government grants and other donor income

Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received are recorded as 
deferred income when they become receivable and are then recognised as income on a sys-
tematic basis over the period necessary to match the grants with the related costs which they 
are intended to compensate.  Unconditional grants received are recognised when the amounts 
have been received.
   
1.4 Grants and project expenditure 
      
A registered company may recover a maximum of 70% of its total levy payment by complying 
with the grant criteria in accordance with the Skills Development Regulations issued in terms 
of the Skills Development Act 1999 (Act No 9 of 1999). 
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1.4.1 Mandatory grants 
      
The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submit-
ted an application for a grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period and 
the application has been approved as the payment then becomes probable. In the case where 
applications have been approved but funding has not yet been received from the Department 
of Labour a provision is made.  

1.4.2 Discretionary grants       
     
A SETA may, out of any surplus monies, determine and allocate discretionary grants to em-
ployers, education and training providers and workers of the employers who have submitted 
an application for a discretionary grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off 
period.   The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the application 
has been approved and all necessary requirements have been complied with.

1.4.3 Project expenditure 
    
Project expenditure comprises: 
    
 - costs that relate directly to the specific contract;       
 - costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the  
    project; and       
 - such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the SETA under the terms of the  
   contract.       
 Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are 
 applied consistently to all costs having similar characteristics.     

Project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.  A receiv-
able or payable is recognised net of a provision for irrecoverable amounts for incentive and 
other payments made in respect of expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.

1.5 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance 
with, a requirement of any applicable legislation, including: 



61

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

 - The PFMA,       
 - The Skills Development Act,       

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have 
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. (See note 23)   

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in 
which it is incurred.       
     
1.6 Property, plant and equipment       
        
Property, plant and equipment (owned and leased) is stated at cost less any subsequent ac-
cumulated depreciation and adjusted for any impairments. Depreciation is calculated on the 
straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to estimated residual value over its 
estimated useful life as follows:       
        
 - Audiovisual equipment   20%    
 - Computer equipment   33%    
 - Kitchen equipment    15%    
 - Leasehold improvements   15%    
 - Office furniture and fittings  15%    
 - Office equipment    20%  
  
The estimated useful life of the assets is limited to the remaining period of the licence issued 
to the SETA by the Minister of Labour. For the current year the remaining period is 3 years 
(2005/06: 4 years).  

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is 
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to 
their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating surplus/deficit. 

Useful lives and residual values of assets are re-estimated annually to finite periods.  
The assets are then depreciated over their re-assessed useful lives.     
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1.7 Intangible assets       
        
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and ad-
justed for any impairments.  Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off 
the cost of each asset to estimated residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:  
      
 - Computer software     33%    
        
Useful lives and residual values of assets are re-estimated annually to finite periods. The as-
sets are then depreciated over their re-assessed useful lives.     

1.8 Leasing       
        
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer sub-
stantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Certain leases were reclassified 
in the prior year from operating to finance leases due to changes in International Accounting 
Standards. National Treasury has granted approval for these re-classifications.   
     
1.9 Retirement benefit costs       

The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are held in separate 
trustee-administered funds. The plan is generally funded by payments from the entity and 
employees, taking account of the recommendations of independent qualified actuaries.  
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the income statement 
in the year to which they relate.   

The rules of the defined contribution plan determine the following in respect of contributions: 
      
 Contribution by employee = 7,5%       
 Contribution by employer  = 7,5%       
        
1.10 Provisions       

Provisions are recognised when the SETA has a present obligation as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated 
reliably.  
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1.10.1 Provision for employee entitlements        

The cost of other employee benefits (not recognised as retirement benefits - see note 1.9 
above) is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Em-
ployee entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees.  A provision is made for 
the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. 
Provisions included in the Statement of Financial Position are provisions for leave (based on 
the current salary rates) and bonuses. 

1.10.2 Provisions for discretionary grants        

No provision is made for projects approved at year-end, unless the service in terms of the 
contract has been delivered or the contract is of an onerous nature. Where a project has been 
approved, but has not been accrued for or provided for,  it is disclosed as commitments in the 
notes to the financial statements.         
  
1.11 Financial instruments       
        
1.11.1 Recognition       

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the SETA’s Statement of Finan-
cial Position when the SETA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  
No financial assets or liabilities are of such a nature that transfers would not result in derec-
ognition.

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are initially recognised using trade 
date accounting.    

1.11.2 Measurement       
        
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost, which includes transaction costs.  
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below. No offsetting 
of financial assets and liabilities has taken place.
 
1.11.3 Financial assets 

The SETA’s principal financial assets are accounts and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents.        
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Accounts and other receivables       
 
Accounts and other receivables are stated at fair value using effective interest rate    
and reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.   

Cash and cash equivalents       
 
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. 

1.11.4 Financial liabilities       
        
The SETA’s principal financial liabilities are accounts and other payables.    

All financial liabilities are measured, using effective interest rate, at fair value comprising 
original debts less principal payments and amortisations. 
   
1.12 Net Assets       
        
This sub-classification is made based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of monies 
received in accordance with the Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 
1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998).       
        
 The following reserves are utilised:       
    - Administration reserve       
    - Employer grants reserve       
    - Discretionary grants reserve       
        

Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development 
Act and the regulations issued in terms of the Act, for the purpose of:   
  

2006/07
%

2005/06
%

Administration costs of the SETA 10 10
Employer grants 50 50
Discretionary grants and projects 20 20

80 80
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In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial 
spheres of government may be used to pay for administration costs.      

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are 
utilised for discretionary grants and projects.  Other income received is utilised in accordance 
with the original source of the income.       

The net surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory grant reserve 
and the discretionary fund reserve based on the above.       

Surplus funds are moved to the Discretionary reserve from the Administration reserve at year 
end. Employer grant reserve funds that are not provided for specific grants are moved to the 
Discretionary reserve. Accruals are made for grants to be paid from levies that have not been 
received at reporting date.       
     
1.13 Comparative figures       

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation 
in the current year.       
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2 ALLOCATION OF NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR TO RESERVES:

Administration 
reserve

Employer grants 
reserve

Discretionary 
grants Special projects

Discretionary 
grants projects

Total 
Discretionary

Total per 
Statement of 

Financial 
Performance

Total per 
Statement of 

Financial 
Performance

2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Total revenue 72 221                86 160                57 212                3 212                  -                          60 424                218 805              210 640              
Skills development levy: income
   Admin levy income (10%) 72 069                -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          72 069                66 858                
   Grant levy income (70%) -                          86 160                35 234                -                          -                          35 234                121 394              111 632              
Skills development levy: penalties and interest -                          -                          1 243                  -                          -                          1 243                  1 243                  1 049                  
National Skills Fund income -                          -                          -                          1 271                  -                          1 271                  1 271                  14 791                
Government grants funding for special projects -                          -                          -                          1 941                  -                          1 941                  1 941                  1 232                  
Investment income -                          -                          20 735                -                          -                          20 735                20 735                14 927                
Other income  152                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                           152                     151                    

Total expenses 50 054                58 207                -                          3 212                  69 372                72 584                180 845              93 732                

Administration expenses 49 876                -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          49 876                44 503                
Finance charges  178                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                           178                     236                    
National Skills Fund expenses -                          -                          -                          1 271                  -                          1 271                  1 271                  14 791                
Employer grants and project expenses -                          58 207                -                          -                          69 372                69 372                127 579              32 970                
Government grants funding expenses -                          -                          -                          1 941                  -                          1 941                  1 941                  1,232                  

Net surplus/(deficit) per Statement of Financial Performance 22 167                27 953                57 212                -                          (69 372)               (12 160)               37 960                116 908              

The net surplus of R37,960 million for the current year can only be committed when certain events have taken place. Since a decision to sweep unclaimed mandatory reserves is made at the financial year end, the Board usually 
approves the usage of these funds in the forthcoming financial year. In relation to this surplus, the Board approved programmes that are in the business plan of the 2007/08 financial year. Application has been made to National 
Treasury to retain these funds for future use.

Discretionary grants reserve
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3 NON-EXCHANGE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY INCOME
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Levy income: Administration 72 069                66 858                
   Levies received 69 382                61 672                
      Levies received 16 957                13 819                
      Ingwe transfer  982                    -                          
      Government levies received 51 455                47 919                
      InterSETA transfers in  5                         12                      
      InterSETA transfers out ( 17)                     ( 78)                     
   Levies accrued 2 687                  5 186                  

Levy income: Employer Grants 86 160                79 947                
   Levies received 72 753                69 274                
      Levies received 63 869                69 604                
      Ingwe transfer 8 956                  -                          
      InterSETA transfers in  15                       58                      
      InterSETA transfers out ( 87)                     ( 388)                   
   Levies accrued 13 407                10 673                

Levy income: Discretionary Grants 35 234                31 685                
   Levies received 29 870                27 512                
      Levies received 26 303                27 643                
      Ingwe transfer 3 583                  -                          
      InterSETA transfers in  19                       24                      
      InterSETA transfers out ( 35)                     ( 155)                   
   Levies accrued 5 364                  4 173                  

193 463              178 490              

4 INVESTMENT INCOME FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Interest income
   Accrued 764                     759                     
   Bank deposits 19,971                14,168                

20,735                14,927                

The total levy income per the Statement of Financial Performance is as follows:
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5 OTHER INCOME FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Other income comprises:
NSF project administration fee -                           138                    
Discounts received -                           13                      
Vat recovered  98                      -                          
National conference income  54                      -                          

 152                     151                    

6 EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Mandatory grants 58 207                34 186                
Disbursements 39 272                14 410                
SARS reversals -                          (1 643)                 
Accruals raised at 31 March 2007 20 534                26 291                
Unutilised provision from prior year reversed (1 599)                 (4 872)                 

Discretionary grants projects 69 372                (1 216)                 
Disbursements 70 569                1 316                  
Accruals raised at 31 March 2007 8 691                  11 307                
Unutilised provision from prior year reversed (9 888)                 (13 839)               

127 579              32 970                

6.1 Discretionary grants project expenditure consists of: 
Direct project costs 69 372                (1 216)                 

69 372                (1 216)                 
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7 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

   Depreciation 1 652                  ( 484)                   
      Current year  969                     985                    
      Due to change in estimate  683                    (1 469)                 
   Amortisation ( 71)                      430                    
      Current year  278                     430                    
      Due to change in estimate ( 349)                   -                          
   Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  252                     181                    
   Operating lease rentals 3 684                  3 262                  
      Buildings 3,624 3 202                  
      Vehicles  60                       60                      
   Fruitless and wasteful expenditure -                          1 716                  
   Maintenance, repairs and running costs  261                     409                    
      Property and buildings -                           11                      
      Machinery and equipment  110                     26                      
      Other  151                     372                    
   Advertising, marketing and promotions, communication 1 008                  2 928                  
   Consultancy and service provider fees 1 063                   656                    
   Legal fees  143                     285                    
   Cost of employment 7.1 24 847                22 964                
   Travel and subsistence 5 768                  3 731                  
   Staff training and development  519                     676                    
   Remuneration to members of the audit committee  89                       55                      
   External auditor's remuneration  492                     241                    
      Audit fees  492                     241                    
   Other 10 169                7 453                  

Audit fees other than external  983                    1 665                  
   - Internal audit  328                    1 111                  
   - Investigation  655                     554                    
Courier fees  413                     199                    
Insurance  227                     214                    
Materials development  261                     234                    
National SETA conference 3 253                  -                          
Staff relocation  327                     710                    
Printing and postage  505                     434                    
Refreshments and catering  597                     399                    
Seminars and conferences  377                     271                    
Telephone and cellphone 1 242                  1 125                  
Water and electricity  302                     202                    
Other 1 682                  2 000                  

Total per Statement of Financial Performance 49 876                44 503                

7.1 Cost of employment
Salaries and wages 22 615                20 858                
   Basic salaries 19 392                17 473                
   Other non-pensionable allowance 2 797                  3 203                  
   Temporary staff  392                     20                      
   Leave payments  27                       157                    
   Overtime payments  7                         5                        
Social contributions 2 232                  2 106                  
   Medical aid contributions  922                     928                    
   Pension contributions: defined contribution plans 1 192                  1 076                  
   UIF  118                     102                    

24 847                22 964                
Allocation of cost of employment
Administration expenses 24 847                22 964                

24 847                22 964                

Number of employees 85                       87                       

Refer to the report by the Accounting Authority for disclosure concerning the emoluments of  the Chief Executive Officer and Senior 
Managers.
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8 FINANCE CHARGES
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Interest expense:
   Obligations under finance leases  178                     236                    
Total interest expense  178                     236                    

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost 

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Closing carrying 
amount 

             Year ended 31 March 2007 R'000 R'000 R'000
             Computer equipment 3 729                       (1 705)                   2 024                  
             Office furniture and fittings 1 793                       (1 283)                    510                    
             Office equipment  273                         ( 208)                      65                      

 406                         ( 128)                      278                    
 27                           ( 12)                        15                      
 48                           ( 9)                          39                      

 902                         ( 154)                      748                    
             Balance at end of period 7 178                       (3 499)                   3 679                  
             Made up as follows:
             - SETA assets 6 276                       
             - Capitalised leased assets  902                         ( 154)                      748                    
             - NSF assets -                               -                             -                          

             All NSF assets have been transferred to schools that NSF identified as beneficiaries as per NSF
             communication dated 30 November 2006.

Cost 

Accumulated 
depreciation/ 
impairment

Closing carrying 
amount 

             Year ended 31 March 2006 R'000 R'000 R'000
             Computer equipment 3 490                       (1 040)                   2 450                  
             Office furniture and fittings 1 793                       (1 005)                    788                    
             Office equipment  723                         ( 216)                      507                    

 260                         ( 84)                        176                    
 25                           ( 7)                          18                      
 23                           ( 6)                          17                      

 582                         ( 117)                      465                    
             Balance at end of period 6 896                       (2 475)                   4 421                  
             Made up as follows:
             - SETA assets 6 101                       (2 150)                   3 951                  
             - Capitalised leased assets  582                         ( 117)                      465                    
             - NSF assets 213 ( 208)                      5                        

             Audiovisual equipment
             Kitchen equipment

             Audiovisual equipment
             Kitchen equipment
             Leasehold improvements
             Capitalised finance leases

             Leasehold improvements
             Capitalised finance leases

                  (3 345)                   2 931
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Movement summary 2007

Carrying amount      
2006 Additions Disposals Depreciation

Depreciation 
change in 
estimate

Carrying amount   
2007

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Computer equipment 2 450                        450                       ( 84)                     ( 451)                   ( 341)                   2 024                  
Office furniture and fittings  788                         -                             -                          ( 257)                   ( 21)                      510                    
Office equipment  507                          17                         ( 112)                   ( 76)                     ( 271)                    65                      

 176                          178                       ( 23)                     ( 22)                     ( 31)                      278                    
 18                            1                           -                          ( 3)                       ( 1)                        15                      
 17                            25                         -                          ( 4)                        1                         39                      

Sub total 3 956                        671                       ( 219)                   ( 813)                   ( 664)                   2 931                  
 465                          695                       ( 237)                   ( 156)                   ( 19)                      748                    

Balance at end of period 4 421                       1 366                     ( 456)                   ( 969)                   ( 683)                   3 679                  

Movement summary 2006

Carrying amount      
2005 Additions Disposals Depreciation

Depreciation 
change in 
estimate

Carrying amount   
2006

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Computer equipment 1 415                        452                       ( 20)                     ( 388)                    991                    2 450                  
Office furniture and fittings  853                          197                       ( 8)                       ( 260)                    6                         788                    
Office equipment  305                          10                         ( 18)                     ( 141)                    351                     507                    

 103                          4                           ( 2)                       ( 50)                      121                     176                    
 9                              12                         -                          ( 3)                       -                           18                      

 179                          16                         ( 152)                   ( 26)                     -                           17                      
Sub total 2 864                        691                       ( 200)                   ( 868)                   1 469                  3 956                  

-                                582                       -                          ( 117)                   -                           465                    
Balance at end of period 2 864                       1 273                     ( 200)                   ( 985)                   1 469                  4 421                  

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation/ 
impairment

Closing carrying 
amount 

R'000 R'000 R'000
Year ended 31 March 2007
Computer software 2095 ( 581)                     1 514                  

2095 ( 581)                     1514

Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation/ 
impairment

Closing carrying 
amount 

R'000 R'000 R'000
Year ended 31 March 2006
Computer software 882 ( 653)                      229                    

882 ( 653)                     229

Carrying amount      
2006 Additions Disposals Amortisation

Amortisation 
change in 
estimate

Carrying amount   
2007

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Movement summary 2007
Computer software  229                         1 214                     -                          ( 278)                    349                    1 514                  

 229                         1 214                     -                          ( 278)                    349                    1 514                  

Carrying amount      
2005 Additions Disposals Amortisation

Amortisation 
change in 
estimate

Carrying amount   
2006

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Movement summary 2006
Computer software  659                         -                             -                          ( 430)                   -                           229                    

 659                         -                             -                          ( 430)                   -                           229                    

Leasehold improvements

Audiovisual equipment

Capitalised finance leases

Capitalised finance leases

Kitchen equipment
Leasehold improvements

Audiovisual equipment

Kitchen equipment
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11 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Skills development levy debtors 21 458                23 994                
Admin levy debtors 2 687                  5 681                  
Employer grant levy debtors 13 407                13 151                
Discretionary grant levy debtors 5 364                  5 162                  

Employer receivables 11.1 -                          1 643                  
SDL receivables 11.2 4 806                  3 110                  
Staff debtors 14                       25                       
Levy penalties and interest 263                     189                     
National Skills Fund 18 5,928                  -                          

32,469                28,961                

11.1 Employer receivables
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Overpayment to employers
   - Net effect of SARS retrospective adjustments on affected employers

Opening balance 1 643                  1 595                  
Raised as income during the year -                           830                    
Realised during the year (1 643)                 ( 782)                   
Closing balance -                          1 643                  

11.2 SDL  receivables
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Underpayment by levypaying entities
   - Registered employers who have not paid levies that are due

Opening balance 3 110                  -                          
Raised as income during the year 4 806                  3 110                  
Realised during the year (3 110)                 -                          
Closing balance                   4 806                   3 110 

12 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Deposits 261                     264                     
Interest receivable 764                     808                     
Prepaid expenses 100                     9                         
Debit orders recovered after year end 54                       -                          
Receivables for fruitless and wasteful expenditure 15                       16                       

                  1,194                   1,097 

13 VAT RECEIVABLE
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

-                          1211

-                          1211

Amounts owing by SARS in respect of claims for VAT refunds that remain 
unpaid

During the year under review all SARS reversals were recovered. All overpayments relating to the prior year were subsequently recovered.
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Cash at bank and on hand 25 127                100 469              
   Cash at bank 25 125                100 468              
   Cash on hand  2                         1                        
Short term investments 267 531              194 501              
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 292 658              294 970              

No balance attributable to NSF is included in the current year Cash at bank balance ( 2005/06 : R10 783 037 ).

15 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Skills development grants payable - mandatory 15.1 20 536                26 291                
Skills development grants payable - discretionary 15.1 8 691                  11 307                
Department of Education donation 2 500                  2 500                  
Levies refundable to small employers 15.2 2 760                  2 030                  
Levies refundable for future SARS reversals 15.2  562                    21 249                
Liability resulting from straight line valuation of leases  631                     318                    
Grants payable  16                      -                          

35 696                63 695                

15.1 Skills development grants payable

Mandatory grants 
payable

Discretionary 
grants payable 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Open carrying amount 26 291                   11 307                37 598                120 956              
Amounts utilised (24 693)                 (1 419)                 (26 112)               (102 245)             
Unutilised provision reversed (1 598)                   (9 888)                 (11 486)               (18 711)               
Charged to income 20 536                   8 691                  29 227                37 598                
Closing carrying amount 20 536                   8 691                  29 227                37 598                

15.2 Levies refundable

Small Employers
   - Small employers who have been exempted from the payment of
     skills development levies but have made payments in error.

Future SARS Reversals
   - Estimate of reversals of levies that may be made by SARS in the following year.

Small Employers
Future SARS 

Reversals 2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance 2 030                     21 249                23 279                -                          
Charged to income during the year 2 760                      562                    3 322                  23 279                
Refunded during the year (2 030)                   (21 249)               (23 279)               -                          
Closing balance 2 760                      562                    3 322                  23 279                

As required in Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are held.  The weighted 
average interest rate on short term bank deposits was 7.26% ( 2005/06 : 6.16% ).
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Project creditors 4 841                  3 562                  
Trade payables 3 970                  2 661                  
Other accrued expenses  467                     155                    
NSF special project expenses -                           58                      
Capitalised lease obligations 16.1  203                     270                    

9 481                  6 706                  

16.1 Reconciliation between the total of minimum lease payments and the present
value :
   Up to 1 year
      Future minimum lease payments 343 400
      Finance charges 140 130
      Present value 203 270

   1 to 5 years
      Future minimum lease payments 524 57
      Finance charges 114 4
      Present value 410 53

Analysed for financial reporting purposes :
   Non-current finance lease obligations 410 53
   Current finance lease obligation (recoverable within 12 months) 203 270
   Total finance lease obligations 613 323

Finance lease repayments for the year 555 496

Assets held under finance leases comprise seven photocopiers and a motor vehicle shown under 
Property, Plant & Equipment as category Capitalised Leased Assets (See notes 9 and 22).EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

17 NATIONAL SKILLS FUND: SPECIAL PROJECTS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Opening balance 10 950                24 761                
Received during the year -                          -                          

-                          -                          
-                          -                          
-                          -                          

Funds returned (9 315)                 -                          
Interest received  322                     980                    
Utilised and recognised as revenue - conditions met
   per Statement of Financial Performance (1 271)                 (14 791)               

-                          (8 689)                 
(1 164)                 (4 712)                 
( 107)                   (1 390)                 

Closing balance per Statement of Financial Position  686                    10 950                

   Skills programmes

   Administration

During the current year no funds were received from the National Skills Fund. However, interest on invested funds of  R 322 424 was 
received. These amounts were recognised as a liability until the conditions attached were met.  During the year, R 1 271 064 eligible 
project special expenses were incurred and a corresponding amount was recognised as revenue.  At year end, R 686 641 continues to be 
accounted for as a liability until the remaining conditions attached have been met. 

   Learner subsidies

   Learner subsidies

   Administration

   Skills programmes
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Project creditors 4 841                  3 562                  
Trade payables 3 970                  2 661                  
Other accrued expenses  467                     155                    
NSF special project expenses -                           58                      
Capitalised lease obligations 16.1  203                     270                    

9 481                  6 706                  

16.1 Reconciliation between the total of minimum lease payments and the present
value :
   Up to 1 year
      Future minimum lease payments 343 400
      Finance charges 140 130
      Present value 203 270

   1 to 5 years
      Future minimum lease payments 524 57
      Finance charges 114 4
      Present value 410 53

Analysed for financial reporting purposes :
   Non-current finance lease obligations 410 53
   Current finance lease obligation (recoverable within 12 months) 203 270
   Total finance lease obligations 613 323

Finance lease repayments for the year 555 496

Assets held under finance leases comprise seven photocopiers and a motor vehicle shown under 
Property, Plant & Equipment as category Capitalised Leased Assets (See notes 9 and 22).EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

17 NATIONAL SKILLS FUND: SPECIAL PROJECTS
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Opening balance 10 950                24 761                
Received during the year -                          -                          

-                          -                          
-                          -                          
-                          -                          

Funds returned (9 315)                 -                          
Interest received  322                     980                    
Utilised and recognised as revenue - conditions met
   per Statement of Financial Performance (1 271)                 (14 791)               

-                          (8 689)                 
(1 164)                 (4 712)                 
( 107)                   (1 390)                 

Closing balance per Statement of Financial Position  686                    10 950                

   Skills programmes

   Administration

During the current year no funds were received from the National Skills Fund. However, interest on invested funds of  R 322 424 was 
received. These amounts were recognised as a liability until the conditions attached were met.  During the year, R 1 271 064 eligible 
project special expenses were incurred and a corresponding amount was recognised as revenue.  At year end, R 686 641 continues to be 
accounted for as a liability until the remaining conditions attached have been met. 

   Learner subsidies

   Learner subsidies

   Administration

   Skills programmes

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
18 GOVERNMENT GRANTS FUNDING RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Opening balance 2 069                   128                    
Received during the year -                          3 173                  

-                          3 173                  
Utilised and recognised as revenue - conditions met

(1 941)                 (1 232)                 
(7 869)                 (1 232)                 

   Debtor raised 11 5 928                  -                          

Closing balance per Statement of Financial Position  128                    2 069                  
   Current  128                    2 069                  

During the year no funds were received.
Of the funds available, R128 281 was not expensed until appointed service providers have complied with all the conditions imposed by the 
Department of Labour for the completeness of the training they have taken on. The Accounting Authority is of the opinion that the service 
providers will comply with imposed conditions in the future and funds will be made available for payment.

   Learnerships

   per Statement of Financial Performance
   Learnerships paid

 
 
EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

19 PROVISIONS 

2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000
Open carrying amount  911                         1 445                     2 356                   984                    
Amounts utilised -                               (2 575)                   (2 575)                 (1 283)                 
Charged to income ( 242)                        2 554                     2 312                  2 655                  
Closing carrying amount  669                         1 424                     2 093                  2 356                  

Non-current -                               -                             -                          -                          
Current  669                         1 424                     2 093                  2 356                  
Total  669                         1 424                     2 093                  2 356                  

their 13th Cheque. This is accumulated to date of payment.

Employee leave 
provision 

A provision is made for the payment of a 13th Cheque at the end of November for those employees who have opted to 
take a 13th Cheque and is calculated each month as the number of employees involved times one twelfth of

The liability for the payment of leave pay is provided for and is calculated as number of leave days accumulated at the 
daily pay rate per payroll.

Employee bonus 
provision        

R'000R'000
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM NET SURPLUS TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 37 960                116 908              
Adjusted for non-cash items:
Depreciation / Amortisation 1 582                  ( 54)                     

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  336                     181                    
   - SETA assets  251                     181                    
   - NSF assets  85                      -                          
Additions to capitalised leased assets ( 695)                   ( 582)                   
(Decrease)/increase in provisions ( 263)                   1 372                  

Adjusted for items separately disclosed :
Decrease in Special Project funding (12 204)               (11 870)               
Investment income (20 778)               (15 212)               

  Increase in receivables (3 606)                 ( 278)                   
  Decrease in payables (24 869)               (81 735)               

Movement in VAT payable 1 211                  (1 205)                 
Cash generated from operations (21 326)               7 525                  

21 CONTINGENCIES

21.1 In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds as at year-end may be forfeited to National Treasury.  As at year-end, this amount could not be 
quantified as National Treasury has not defined surplus funds.  No formal approval has been obtained from National Treasury to retain 
surplus funds.
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EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

22 COMMITMENTS

22.1 Discretionary reserve

Opening balance 
2005/06

Approved by 
Accounting 
Authority Utilised

Commitment @ 
31/3/06 Adjustments

Prior year 
programmes

Approved by 
Accounting 
Authority Utilised

Commitment @ 
31/3/07

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Research and Impact Studies 1 094                     ( 930)                    62                       102                     5                         107                     107                    -                          
Sub sector Research for Constituency Services Plan ( 371)                     3 378                  3 037                  ( 30)                      40                       10                      10 -                          
Learning Programmes for Enterprises and Organisations 9 056                     (4 284)                 3 288                  1 484                  -                          1 484                  5 1 479                  
SDF Capacity Building  360                        104                     91                       373                    -                           373                    22  351                    
QMS and Moderator Training  737                       3 269                   824                    3 182                  (3 182)                 -                          -                          -                          
Learnership Grants -                             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Strategy to reach Small ETD Organisations 3 104                     (2 875)                  242                    ( 13)                      13                      -                          -                          -                          
Tracking Graduates of Learnerships  500                       ( 500)                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Service Provider Development Programme  470                       ( 374)                    50                       46                      -                           46                      -                           46                      
Development of HRD Infrastructure  565                       ( 134)                    328                     103                    -                           103                    -                           103                    
HIV/AIDS Support and Service Strategies 2 572                     (2 451)                  109                     12                      -                           12                      -                           12                      
Community Development  959                       ( 820)                    113                     26                      -                           26                      -                           26                      
Output VAT on Projects (2 099)                   2 458                   359                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
HSRC -                             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
NPDE 5 000                     -                          -                          5 000                  -                          5 000                  -                          5 000                  
IIP Project -                              3                         3                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Grants Handbook  50                         ( 50)                     -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Impact Study 1 000                     (1 000)                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Constituency Discretionary Grants 13 868                   1 000                  4 989                  9 879                  (4 233)                 5 646                  1349 4 297                  
Learnership Grants 10 850                   57 692                31 162                37 380                (12 632)               24 748                20474 4 274                  
85 Organisations and DOEs assisted -                             2 350                   238                    2 112                  -                          2 112                  320 1 792                  
Joint Implementation Plan with SAQA -                             2 100                  1 500                   600                    -                           600                    -                           600                    
Integrated RPL project -                             1 167                   90                      1 077                  -                          1 077                  451  626                    
110 SDFs trained -                             1 318                   136                    1 182                  -                          1 182                  432  750                    
Research Plan project -                             6 601                  -                          6 601                  (1 549)                 5 052                  2 052                  3 000                  
Voucher system -                             1 555                  -                          1 555                  -                          1 555                  1 424                   131                    
Learnership programmes -                             31 971                -                          31 971                (1 615)                 30 356                30 188                 168                    
New Venture Creation -                              255                    -                           255                    -                           255                    -                           255                    
Develop and register two relevant qualifications -                              461                    -                           461                    -                           461                    -                           461                    
Quality assure 77000 learners -                              630                    -                           630                    -                           630                     91                       539                    
ABET 21,109                -                          21 109                
ABET L5 11,627                -                          11 627                
DEVELOPMENT PRACTICE L1 -5 7,396                  2 186                  5 210                  
OD ETD L4 & 5 3,583                  -                          3 583                  
ECD L4 3,523                   342                    3 181                  
ECD L5 7,810                  -                          7 810                  
New Venture Creation 10,172                -                          10 172                
Skills Programmes 21,500                16605 4 895                  
Finance and administration 5,665                   678                    4 987                  
University of Stellenbosch 405                     -                           405                    
HESA 633                      117                     516                    
PGCE 3,018                   808                    2 210                  
University Of Johannesburg Non ETD 607                     -                           607                    
Workplace Agreements 420                     -                           420                    
Bursary 410                     -                           410                    
Internships 503                      351                     152                    
Partnerships - ALN 6,690                  -                          6 690                  
Non ETD 547                     114  433                    
Vouchers - 700 Organizations 5,040                  1134 3 906                  
Research Contracts 1,176                  -                          1 176                  
Admin Voucher system 656                     -                           656                    
Total 47 715                   102 894              46 621                103 988              (23 153)               80 835                112 488              79 260                114 063              
2007/08 Programmes 159 000              
Movement in provisions (47 837)               -9888

(1 216)                 69 372                273 063              

Of the balance of R277 722 000 available in the Discretionary reserve at the end of March 2007, the commitments detailed below have been made to projects and skills priorities. Amounts for 
expenses that have already been contracted or incurred, and therefore included in grant expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance, are indicated.  A request for the accumulation of 
these funds has been submitted to National Treasury.  At the time of compiling the financial statements, no reply had been received.
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22.2 Administration reserve
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

5 298                  4650

22.3

22.3.1 Operating Leases
2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Motor Vehicle
Not later than one year -                           60                      
Later than one year and not later than five years -                           90                      

Buildings
Not later than one year 3 126                  3 005                  
Later than one year and not later than five years 7 787                  10 913                

22.3.2 Capitalised finance leases

Office Equipment
Not later than one year  283                     400                    
Later than one year and not later than five years  494                     57                      

Motor Vehicle
Not later than one year  61                      -                          
Later than one year and not later than five years  30                      -

11 781                14 525                

23

2006/07 2005/06
R'000 R'000

Penalties and interest on late submission of returns to SARS
   - Attempts to prove liability have been unsuccessful -                          1 711                  

Company liquidated after wrongly paying money into their bank account -                           2                        
   - Attempts at contact have proven fruitless
Late termination of hygiene supplies contract -                           3                        
   - Contract management has been prioritised

-                          1716

No material losses through criminal conduct occurred during the financial year.

No financial assistance was received from the State and no commitment was made by the State on 
behalf of the SETA.

Reserve retained to cover future depreciation / amortisation of Property, plant 
and equipment  / Intangible assets

Future commitments are determined by obligations contained in the lease agreements.

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases:

No irregular expenditure occurred during the financial year.
No criminal or disciplinary steps were taken as a consequence of losses in the financial year.

MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

The operating leases relate to building premises used for office accommodation and the use of a motor vehicle (prior year).  One of the 
lease agreements for office space was entered into effective on 1 August 2005 and will expire on 31 July 2010.  Three other lease 
agreements for office space at regional sites were entered into effective 1 November 2005 and will run separately for one year, two years 
and three years. Provision was made for an option to renew the leases on expiry. In the prior year office equipment comprised 
photocopiers and a switchboard. The leases for the two photocopiers were entered into effective 1 July 2003 and run for five years. The 
switchboard was in two leases that were entered into on 1 July and 1 November 2003 and run for three years. These leases were 
terminated during the current financial year. Office equipment in the current year comprises a lease of seven photocopiers entered into at 
1 February 2007 and running for three years. The Motor Vehicle lease was capitalised in the current year to provide better disclosure. The 
lease was entered into on 1 September 2004 and runs for four years.

No losses relating to the current or prior years were recovered during the financial year.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Interest rate risk

Amount             
R'000

Effective interest 
rate

Amount           
R'000

Weighted 
average 

effective interest 
rate  %

Weighted 
average period 
for which the 
rate is fixed in 

years

Amount           
R'000

Weighted 
average period 
until maturity in 

years

 Assets 
 Cash                    292 658                             7                           -                           -                           - -                          292 658              
 Accounts receivable                      33 664                           -                           -                           - -                          -                          33 664                

 Total financial assets                    326 322                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 326 322              
 Liabilities 

 Accounts payable                      45 178                              -                           -                           -                           - -                          -                          45 178                
 Bank overdraft -                          

 Total financial liabilities                      45 178                             -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                 45 178 

 Total financial assets                    303 779                           - -                          303 779              
 Total financial liabilities                      49 152                           - -                          49 152                

                   352 931                           - -                          352 931              

Fixed Rate Non-interest bearing
TOTAL            
R'000

The SETA's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates on financial instruments at balance sheet date are as follows:

 Year ended 31 March 2006 

 Year ended 31 March 2007 

Floating rate 

The SETA manages its interest rate risk by spreading its funds over different financial institutions and utilising various different short term investments. A cash management 
system is utilised for the SETA's current accounts.

In the course of the SETA operations it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk.  The SETA has developed a comprehensive risk strategy
in order to monitor and control  these risks.  The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below. 

                             - 
                             - 

                             - 
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ( Continued ) 
      
Credit risk     
Financial assets, which potentially subject the SETA to the risk of non performance by counter parties and thereby to concentrations of credit risk, 
consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments and accounts receivable.          

The SETA management limits its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions approved by National 
Treasury through the approval of their investment policy in terms of Treasury Regulation 31.2. The SETA’s exposure is continuously monitored by a 
Finance Committee convened in accordance with the PFMA.       
Credit risk with respect to levy paying employers is limited due to the nature of the income received.  The SETA does not have any material exposure 
to any individual or counter-party.  The SETA’s concentration of credit risk is limited to the Education, Training and Development industry in which the 
SETA operates.  No events occurred in the industry during the financial year that may have an impact on the accounts receivable that has not been 
adequately provided for.  Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful debt. 

Liquidity risk      
The SETA manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual vs. forecasted cash flows and its 

investment policy. Adequate reserves and  liquid resources are also maintained. 
Market risk     
The SETA is exposed to fluctuations in the employment market ;  for example sudden increases in unemployment and changes in the wage rates.  
No significant events occurred during the year that the SETA is aware of.       

Fair values 
      
The SETA’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, account and other receivables, and account and other payables.  
No financial instruments were carried at an amount in excess of its fair value.  The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the 
fair value of each class of financial instrument:

No financial asset or liability was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for all financial instruments. 
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions were at arm's length.
The parent entity of all SETAs is the Department of Labour.

Amount of the 
transaction

Amount 
receivable/

payable)
Amount of the 

transaction
Received  40                      -                           94                      -                          
FASSET -                          -                           1                        -                          
SERVICES  33                      -                           93                      -                          
MAPPSETA  7                        -                          -                          -                          

Paid  140                    -                           621                    -                          
H&WSETA  41                      -                           196                    -                          
CHIETA -                          -                           24                      -                          
W&RSETA -                          -                           36                      -                          
SERVICES  89                      -                           111                    -                          
MERSETA -                          -                           125                    -                          
TETA -                          -                           45                      -                          
CETA -                          -                           63                      -                          
THETA -                          -                           4                        -                          
MAPPSETA -                          -                           2                        -                          
ESETA -                          -                           1                        -                          
PAETA -                          -                           14                      -                          
FOOD & BEV SETA  10                      -                          -                          -                          

Total ( 100)                   -                          ( 527)                   -                          

Related party
Nature of 

relationship Transaction type
Amount of the 

transaction
Amount of the 

transaction
Receivables
NSF income Related to DOL Project funding -                          -                          3 125                  -                          
HESA Governance Mandatory grant  8                        -                          -                          -                          
FEDUSA Governance Mandatory grant  5                        -                          -                          -                          
NEHAWU Governance Mandatory grant  100                    -                          -                          -                          
SADTU Governance Mandatory grant  385                    -                          -                          -                          
NAPTOSA Governance Mandatory grant  7                        -                          -                          -                          
COSATU Governance Mandatory grant  36                      -                          -                          -                          
SACECD Governance Mandatory grant  1                        -                          -                          -                          
INSTITUTE FOR QUALITY Governance Discretionary grant 1 555                  -                          -                          -                          
DEPARTMENT OF LABOUR Public entity Funding returned 6 351                  -                          -                          -                          
POLOKWANE MUNICIPALITY Public entity Service provider  2                        -                          -                          -                          
SABC Public entity Service provider  1                        -                          -                          -                          
SAQA Public entity Service provider  52                      -                          -                          -                          
SARS Public entity PAYE, UIF 3 792                  -                          -                          -                          
SAA Public entity Service provider 1 247                  -                          -                          -                          
THE AUDITOR - GENERAL Public entity Service provider  492                    -                          -                          -                          
MEDICAL RESEARCH COUNCIL Public entity Service provider  7                        -                          -                          -                          
TELKOM SA Public entity Service provider  827                    -                          -                          -                          

During the year members of the accounting authority and employees were required to disclose their interest in any contracts that the 
SETA is entering into with an outside party.  As a result the SETA entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2006/07
R'000

R'000

InterSETA transactions arise due to the movement of employers from one SETA to another.  No other transactions occurred during the 
year with other SETAs. No balances with other SETAs existed at 31 March 2007.

Transactions with other SETAs.

2006/07 2005/06

Transactions with other related parties

R'000

2005/06
R'000

Amount 
receivable/

payable)

Amount 
receivable/

payable)

Amount 
receivable/

payable)
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13.  ETDP SETA GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES 
 
13.1   Board Members

No
of meetings
attended 1-4

Name and Surname Constituency Position

3 Vernon Nzama Limpopo DoE Chairperson and EXCO

4 Matseliso Dipholo SADTU Co-Chairperson and EXCO

4 Mark Henning NAISA Co-Chairperson and EXCO

3 Lulamile Sotaka NEHAWU Co-Chairperson and EXCO

4 Vincent Maphumulo SADTU Board Members and EXCO

4 Dr Tholsia Naicker APPETD Board Members and EXCO

4 Nathaniel Mogajane NAPTOSA Board Members and EXCO

3 Simone Geyer National DoE Board Members and EXCO

4 Dieter Kusel APPETD Board Member

3 Guy Blackbeard APPETD Board Member

3 Samson Makhado NAISA Board Member

4 Farrell Hunter SANGOCO Board Member

0 Jose Coetzee Gauteng DoE Board Member

4 Archie Mokonane ALN Board Member

4 Jan Hurter Western Cape DoE Board Member

3 Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA Board Member 

4
James Taylor (seat 
reallocated)

NUTESA Board Member

4
Doria van Niekerk replaced by 
Zolile Albanie

Northern Cape DoE Board Member

3 Lulama Mbobo KwaZulu Natal DoE Board Member
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0 Sello Malaka North West DoE Board Member

4 Sipho Sukati Mpumalanga DoE Board Member

2 Bob Tladi Free State DoE Board Member

2 Mfezeko Ntozakhe Eastern Cape DoE Board Member

1 Nomusa Cindi NATU Board Member

3 Trudy Guma NEHAWU Board Member

4 Suraya Jawoodeen NEHAWU Board Member

0 Guy Slingsby NEHAWU Board Member

3 Dave van Eeden HESA Board Member

3 Ingrid Fourie HESA Board Member

4 Nokhanyiso Mantshongo SADTU Board Member

4 Paseka Njobe SADTU Board Member

0 (3)
Matseko Mogari replaced by 
(Nkosana Dolopi)

SADTU Board Member

1 Jonavon Rustin SADTU Board Member

1 Salome Sithole SADTU Board Member

1 Mpho Mofokeng SADTU Board Member

1 Jake Dikobo PEU Board Member

0 (1)
Prof FJ Potgieter replaced by 
(Prof Maria de Witt)

SAOU Board Member

3 Ella Mokgalane SACE Board Member

4 Charl Fregona NUTESA Board Member

3 Karen Hinrichs SABPP Board Member

3 Dave Shutte (seat reallocated) NAPTOSA Board Member

3 Sylvia Nkanyuza NTESU Board Member
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4 Segoane Lillian SACECD Board Member

4 Lydia Mathinya Gauteng DoE Budget Chamber Observer

4 Pinky Mncube SADTU Budget Chamber Observer

3 Bradley Skei NEHAWU Levy Chamber Observer

4 Nombulelo Nxesi ETDP SETA CEO (ex-officio)

3 Frank Molelle ETDP SETA COO (ex-officio)

3 David Molapo ETDP SETA CFO (ex-officio)

13.2 Executive Committee Members

No of meetings 
attended 1-6 Name and Surname Constituency Position

6 Vernon Nzama Limpopo DoE Chairperson

6 Matseliso Dipholo SADTU Co-Chairperson

6 Mark Henning NAISA Co-Chairperson

4 Lulamile Sotaka NEHAWU Co-Chairperson 

6 Vincent Maphumulo SADTU Member

5 Simone Geyer DoE Member

3 Nathaniel Mogajane NAPTOSA Member

4 Dr. Tholsia Naicker APPETD Member

6 Nombulelo Nxesi ETDP SETA CEO
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13.3 Audit Committee Members
 

No Name and Surname Constituency Position

1 Vusi Mokwena Independent Chairperson

2 Nick Nicholls Independent Member

3 Jan Hurter Western Cape DoE Employer Representative

4 Bashier Adam Independent Member

5 John Maluleke SADTU Employee Representative

6 Trudy Guma Labour Employee Representative

7 Nombulelo Nxesi ETDP SETA CEO (ex officio)

8 David Molapo ETDP SETA CFO (ex officio)

9 Daisy Nyamane ETDP SETA Finance Manager (ex officio)

13.4 Finance Committee Members

No Name and Surname Constituency Position

1 James Taylor Labour Chairperson (appointed until 25/01/07)

1 Sipho Sukati Mpumalanga DoE Chairperson (appointed from 26/01/07)

2 John Scott Private Provider Employers Representative

3 Jake Dikobo PEU Employee Representative

4 Thami Ntanda SADTU Employee Representative

5 Nombulelo Nxesi ETDP SETA CEO (ex officio)

6 David Molapo ETDP SETA CFO (ex officio)

7 Daisy Nyamane ETDP SETA Finance Manager (ex officio)
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13.5 Human Resource Committee Members

No Name and Surname Constituency Position

1 Paseka Njobe SADTU Chairperson

2 Ingrid Fourie HESA Member

3 Sylvia Nkanyuza NTESU Member

4 Zolile Albanie Northern Cape DoE Member

5 Nombulelo Nxesi ETDP SETA CEO (ex officio)

6 Mike Watkins ETDP SETA HR Manager (ex officio)
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13.6 Budget Chamber Members

NO Name and Surname Constituency Position

1. Pinky Mncube SADTU Chairperson

2. Modiboa Colin SADTU Member

3. MalulekeJohn SADTU Member

4. Oliphant Ruth SADTU Member

5. Mantshongo Khanyi SADTU Member

6. Mofokeng Mpho SADTU Member

7. Rustin Jonavan SADTU Member

8. Hofmeester Veronica SADTU Member

9. Ngwendu Fundile SADTU Member

10. Mbhedesho Mqhathu SADTU Member

11. Bouwer Johan SAOU Member

12. VACANT NAPTOSA Member

13. Mogajane Nathaniel NAPTOSA Member

14. VACANT NAPTOSA Member

15. Mhletywa Pumezo NAPTOSA Member

16. Mpungose Silas NEHAWU Member

17. Selala Connie NEHAWU Member

18. VACANT NEHAWU Member

19. Mulaudzi Cedric NEHAWU Member

20. Mpungose Bongani NATU Member

21. Sipho Sukati Mpumalanga  (DOE) Member

22. Mxenge Ntombi Mpumalanga (DOE) Member

23. Motshumi Kedidimetse Free State (DOE) Member
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NO Name and Surname Constituency Position

24. Snyders Marinda Free State (DOE) Member

25. De Bruyn Gavin Western Cape (DOE) Member

26. Ntombela Dennis Western Cape (DOE) Member

27. Thorne Ashley Western Cape (DoE) Member

28. Lusaseni Bulelwa Eastern Cape (DOE) Member

29. Nontshokweni Nombeko Eastern Cape (DOE) Member

30. VACANT Gauteng (DOE) Member

31. Mathinya Lydia Gauteng (DOE) Chairperson

32.  Nkomo Thula National (DOE) Member

33. Shongwe Thandazile (Mpume) Kwazulu Natal (DOE) Member

34. Msweli Mandla Kwazulu Natal (DOE) Member

35. Nzama Vernon LIMPOPO (DOE) Member

36. Malima Sussan LIMPOPO (DOE) Member

37. Mmule Malebye North West (DOE) Member

38. John Simon North West (DOE) Member

39. Sechele Thabo North West (DOE) Member

40. Mbekushe Mayenzeke Northern Cape (DOE) Member

41. Jack Xolile Northern Cape (DOE) Member

42. Benjamin Rachel Northern Cape (DOE) Member
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13.7 Levy Chamber Members:

No Constituency Name and Surname Position

1.
NAISA (National Alliance of Independent Schools 
Association)

Mark Henning Member

2.
NAISA (National Alliance of Independent Schools 
Association)

VACANT Member

3.
APPEDT (Association of Private Providers of 
Education, Training and Development)

Dr Mamsie Motshekga-
Sebolai

Member

4.
APPEDT (Association of Private Providers of 
Education, Training and Development)

Ashik Hansraj Member

5. HESA (Higher Education South Africa) Prof Hendrik Louw Member

6.
SANGOCO (South African Non Governmental 
Organisation Coalition)

Pinky Mamabolo Member

7.
SANGOCO (South African Non Governmental 
Organisation Coalition)

Crosby Thobela Member

8.
FEDUSA (Federation of Democratic Unions of South 
Africa)

Dennis George Member

9.
FEDUSA (Federation of Democratic Unions of South 
Africa)

Darron Minnaar Member

10.
APPEDT (Association of Private Providers of 
Education, Training and Development)

Tholsia Naicker Chairperson

11. ALN (Adult Learning Network) Moses Msotywa Member

12. RI (Research Institutions) Achmat Noor Member

13.
NEHAWU (National Education, Health and Allied 
Workers Union)

Pat Motubatse Member

14.
NEHAWU (National Education, Health and Allied 
Workers Union)

Bradley Skei Chairperson

15. SADTU (South African Democratic Teachers’ Union) Thami  Ntanda Member

16. SADTU (South African Democratic Teachers’ Union) Vincent Maphumulo Member

17.
NEHAWU (National Education’ Health and Allied 
Workers Union)

Xoliswa Adams Member

18.
NAPTOSA (National Professional Teachers’ 
Organisation of South Africa)

Diane Bunting Member
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No Constituency Name and Surname Position

19.
NAPTOSA (National Professional Teacher’s 
Organisation of South Africa)

VACANT Member

20. NTESU (National Tertiary Education Staff Union) John Landman Member

21. NUTESA (National Union of Technikon educators of 
South Africa) Lambert Makhalemele Member

22. NUTESA (National Union of Technikon educators of 
South Africa) Njabulo Zuma Member

23.
NUTESA (National Union of Technikon educators of 
South Africa)

Robin Minne Member

13.8 ETQA Permanent Committee Members

No. Constituency Name and Surname Position

1.  NTESU John Landman Chairperson

2. SADTU Mpho Mofokeng Member

3. APPETD Paul Beard Member

4. APPETD Tony Khatle Member

5. Western Cape DoE Linda Rose Member

6.  NAPTOSA Ian Corbishley Member

7. NEHAWU Bradley Skei Member

8. KZN  DoE Mandla Msweli Member
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